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December 5, 2008 CiTy OF lowA CITY

To the Citizens, Honorable Mayor, Members
of the City Council and City Manager
City of Iowa City, Iowa

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Iowa City, Iowa (the City)
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 is submitted herewith in accordance with the provisions of
Chapter 11 of the Code of Iowa. The City’s Finance Department prepared this report.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data presented and the completeness and fairness of
the presentation, including all disclosures, rest with the City. I believe the information, as
presented, is accurate in all material respects and presented in a manner designed to fairly present
the financial position and results of operations of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the
reader to gain an understanding of the City's financial affairs have been included.

This report consists of management’s representation concerning the finances of the City of lowa
City. Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the
information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these
representations, management of the City has established a comprehensive internal control
framework that is designed both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and
to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City’s financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP). Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City’s
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather
than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As
management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is
complete and reliable in all material respects.

The CAFR reflects all funds of the City in accordance with standards set by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). In 1999, GASB adopted Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements — Management’s Discussion and Analysis — For State and Local
Governments. The final effective date for the implementation of GASB No. 34 for the City of
Iowa City was June 30, 2003. This report complies with those standards. This statement
significantly changes governmental financial reporting in order to bring it closer to a private
sector model.

The City is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the
Single Audit Act of 1996 and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133,
Audits of State and Local Governments. Information related to this single audit, including the
schedules of federal financial assistance, findings and questioned costs, and independent auditors’
reports on the internal accounting and administrative controls and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations are included in the compliance section of this report.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in



conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the
independent auditors.

The City of Iowa City’s financial statements have been audited by Fide Bailly, LLP of Dubuque,
Iowa, a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to
provide reasonable assurance that the City’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended, June 30,
2008 are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the
overall financial statement preparation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit,
that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City of Iowa City’s
financial statements for the fiscal year ended, June 30, 2008, are fairly presented in conformity with
GAAP.

Profile of the Government

The City of Iowa City was incorporated April 6, 1853. The City is governed by a seven member
Council; each member serves a four-year term. Elections are held every two years allowing for
continuation in office of at least three members at each biennial election. The Council members are
elected at large, but three members are nominated from specific districts, and the four other
members are nominated at large. The Council elects the Mayor from its own members for a two-
year term.

The City Council is the legislative body and makes all policy determinations for the City through
the enactment of ordinances and resolutions. It also adopts a budget to determine how the City will
obtain and spend its funds. The Council appoints members of boards, commissions and
committees.

The City Manager is the chief administrative officer for the City and is appointed by the City
Council. The City Manager implements policy decisions of the City Council and enforces City
ordinances. In addition, the City Manager appoints and directly supervises the directors of the
City’s operating departments and supervises the administration of the City’s personnel system. He
supervises 544 full-time and 87 permanent part-time municipal employees and 446 temporary
employees including a police force of 73 sworn personnel and a fire department of 56 firefighters.
The City owns and operates its water supply and distribution system and sewage collection and
treatment system with secondary treatment also provided. Virtually the entire City has separate
storm and sanitary sewer systems. The City operates a municipal off-street and on-street parking
system in the downtown area. Since 1971, the City has operated a transit system.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City’s financial planning and control. All
departments of the City are required to submit requests for appropriation to the City Manager in
October. The City Manager uses these requests as the starting point for developing a proposed
budget. The City Manager then presents this proposed budget to the Council for review in
December. The Council is required to hold a public hearing on the proposed budget and to adopt a
final budget no later than March 15. The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function (e.g.,
Public Safety), and department (e.g., Police).

The City adopts a three-year financial plan that includes both operations and capital improvements.
This three-year plan permits a more comprehensive review of the City’s financial condition,
allowing analysis of the current and future needs and requirements. During preparation of the plan,
careful review is made of property tax levy rates, utility and user fee requirements, ending cash



balances by fund, debt service obligations, bond financing needs, capital outlay for equipment
purchases and major capital improvement projects. The state requires at least a one-year operating
budget. While legal spending control is exercised at a state mandated function level, management
control is set at the Department Manager level. Encumbrance accounting is utilized in all funds for
budgetary control. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end for the governmental fund types are
reflected as reservations of the fund balances. Appropriations that are not encumbered lapse at the
end of the year.

Information useful in assessing the government’s economic condition

The City's economic strength is based upon education, medical services, and diversified
manufacturing. The University of Iowa is the City’s largest employer with almost 28,200
employees and the University of Iowa Hospitals and Clinics is the largest university-owned
teaching medical center in the United States. The City also has a significant number of private
employers who have a history of providing stable and increasing employment in the community.
The relative stability of the University of lowa, coupled with the City’s multi-sector base of
industrial and commercial interests, will continue to help insulate the City from the significant
negative economic impacts related to unemployment.

The City continues to see sustained production in our major local industries, such as ACT, Proctor
& Gamble, and Pearson. Continued economic development efforts involving the Iowa City and
Coralville Chambers of Commerce, local private interests, the University of lowa and other
surrounding communities through participation as members of the Iowa City Area Development
Group, have proved positive with the retention and expansion of businesses. In addition, the
corridor between Iowa City and Cedar Rapids has been identified as one of the major growth areas
for new business development in the State of lowa. Continued developments within Iowa City and
the region have a favorable impact upon the City's economy.

There have been improvements in the budget challenges faced by the State of lowa, however, the
City's economy as a whole continues to grow. The major employers have been able to maintain
their workforce size. The unemployment rate for Johnson County continues to remain low at
between 2.9% and 3.1%. The City has consistently experienced modest increases in assessed
property valuations. New housing construction continues to be relatively strong with 133 new
single-family houses and 151 multi-family dwelling units added to the tax rolls for the year ended
December 31, 2007. This, along with the low unemployment rate, continues to be indicative of
the City's economic well being.

The 2000 census population of Towa City was 62,220. After further review by the United States
Census Bureau, the population was revised to 62,887 in 2006. This represents a 5.0% increase
over the 1990 population of 59,738.

In preparing the financial plan for the three years ending June 30, 2011, the process of budget
balancing has again been most difficult. With the continued tax limitations imposed by the state
(specifically the residential rollback factor) and other federal and state regulations and mandates,
the municipal service needs for our growing community are becoming increasingly difficult to
satisfy.

In balancing the budget for the three-year period, the City attempted to maintain service levels,
wherever practical. In addition, our planning has been directed at maintaining our current fiscal
strength and avoiding any erosion of that fiscal position, including the City’s Aaa bond rating.



A continuing major objective in the three-year financial plan is to maintain or increase the City's
cash reserve position. In addition, procedures were adopted to allocate unreserved fund balances
between the contingency and undesignated fund balances. The contingency fund is available during
the fiscal year for unanticipated and unbudgeted expenditures, while the undesignated fund balance
is intended to be maintained as working capital. The City is committed to drawing from the
undesignated fund balance only in emergency situations. This unreserved fund balance allocation
along with specific budgeting techniques has allowed the City to increase or maintain fund balances
over the past year.

The City continues to pursue cooperative efforts with other local governments. Joint funding,
purchasing, planning and other efforts allow the City to meet mandates for new and improved
services in the future at the most reasonable cost. Joint cooperation currently encompasses
regional transportation planning, human services, solid waste management planning, a hazardous
materials response program, an enhanced 911 emergency communications system, community
relations, joint operation of an animal control facility, joint operation of an indoor swimming pool
facility, and joint economic development efforts. While such cooperative efforts are not new in
concept, the City expects to enter into more agreements with neighboring governmental
subdivisions, as well as with the University of lowa.

There are many signs that the City remains healthy and vibrant with great promise for the future.
The University of lowa continues to add new buildings and facilities. The City continues to see
sustained production in major local industries. Industrial and commercial interests within the
community have continued to thrive.

Throughout the month of June, city staff and the citizens of Iowa City dealt with the Iowa River
which flooded central parts of the city. The City of Iowa City was among several cities in lowa
that received a Presidential Disaster declaration. That disaster declaration brought the Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) technical and financial assistance to lowa City. As in
many such disasters, parts of the community experienced financial hardships while it brought
financial opportunities to others. In fiscal year 2009 we expect to rebuild and enhance the
affected areas.

Major Initiatives

The City continues to be proactive in maintaining and building its streets, bridges, storm water
mains, and trail systems and spent approximately $7,191,000 in fiscal year 2008 on various
projects. The major projects were intersection improvements at Gilbert\Prentiss\Bowery streets,
the extension and pavement of Lower West Branch Road and the continuation of the McCollister
Boulevard extension project.

The Iowa City Housing Authority provides rental assistance for 1,214 units, with an annual
contribution contract with the Federal Government of $6,231,000. Community Development Block
Grant and Home Investment Partnership funds totaling approximately $1,895,000 were utilized for
economic development, housing, public services and facilities, and planning activities during fiscal
year 2008. Community and Economic Development also leveraged approximately $4,234,000 in
other funds. These programs provide for broad based financial impacts locally for builders,
developers, and others.



Financial Information

Single Audit: As a recipient of federal financial assistance, the City is responsible for ensuring that
adequate internal controls are in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations
related to those programs. These internal accounting and administrative controls are subject to
periodic evaluation by the City's management.

The results of the City's single audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 provided no instances of
material weaknesses in the internal controls or significant violations of applicable laws and
regulations based upon the audit of the basic financial statements.

Retirement Plans: With the exception of police and fire employees, substantially all permanent
City employees are covered by the Iowa Public Employees Retirement System (IPERS). The state
annually sets the contribution rate for all municipal entities and covered employees. All covered
employees are required to contribute 3.9% of their salary, while employers contribute 6.05%. There
is no allocation or measurement of unfunded liability to any municipal entity and, upon the
retirement of employees, IPERS has the sole responsibility for their benefits. The City has no
responsibility to pay employee pension benefits of IPERS besides the required contribution.

The City’s police and fire employees are covered by the Municipal Fire and Police Retirement
System of Iowa (MFPRSI). This statewide system is a cost-sharing multiple-employer public
employee retirement system. The state annually sets the contribution rate for all municipal
entities and employees. The City has no responsibility to pay employee pension benefits of
MFPRSI besides the required contribution.

Cash Management: The majority of the City's investment activity is carried on by the City's
investment pool, except for those funds which are required to maintain their investments separately.
This pooled concept provides for greater investment earnings that are then allocated to the City’s
funds on a systematic basis.

The intention of the cash management system is to limit the amount of funds placed in accounts
where low or no interest is paid. Idle cash is invested in various instruments with various
maturity dates of less than one year, depending on the anticipated cash requirements during the
period.

The overall strategy of holding deposits and making investments is to expose the City to a minimum
amount of credit risk and market risk. All bank balances of deposits as of the balance sheet date are
entirely insured or collateralized with securities held by the State of lowa Sinking Fund.

For the year ended June 30, 2008, the City earned $7,211,000 from all investments, a decrease of
$440,000 from the prior year. The following table shows how this was allocated by fund type for
the fiscal years 2008 and 2007:



2008 2007

Investment Investment
Fund Type Earnings Earnings
(in thousands) (in thousands)
Governmental $ 3932 $ 4,045
Business-type 3.279 3.606
Totals $ 7211 $ 7,651

Risk Management: The City is exposed to a variety of accidental losses and has established a risk
management strategy that attempts to minimize losses and the carrying cost of insurance.

Risk control techniques have been established to reasonably ensure that the City’s employees are
aware of their responsibilities regarding loss exposures related to their duties. In a similar manner,
risk control techniques have been established to reduce possible losses to property owned by or
under the control of the City. Furthermore, supervisory personnel are held responsible for
monitoring risk control techniques on an operational basis. The City completed its eighteenth year
under a property and liability insurance program that provides for a $100,000 self-insured retention
per occurrence on property losses, a $500,000 self-insured retention per occurrence on liability, and
a $400,000 self-insured retention on workers’ compensation losses. The insurance provides
coverage for claims in excess of the aforementioned self-insured retention up to a maximum of
$21,000,000 annual aggregate of the losses paid. The operating funds pay annual premiums to the
Loss Reserve Fund, which is accounted for as an internal service fund. The balance in the Loss
Reserve Fund is available to cover the self-insured retention amounts and any uninsured losses.
The total assets in the Loss Reserve Fund as of June 30, 2008 were $7,420,000.

Independent Audit: Chapter 11 of the Code of Iowa requires an annual audit to be performed.
The independent public accounting firm of Eide Bailly LLP was selected by the City. In addition to
meeting the requirements set forth in Chapter 11, the audit was also designed to meet the
requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1996 and related OMB Circular A-133. The independent
auditors’ report on the basic financial statements and combining and individual fund statements and
schedules is included in the financial section of this report. The independent auditors’ reports
related specifically to the single audit are included in the compliance section of this report.

The financial statements are the responsibility of the City. The responsibility of the certified
public accountants is to express an opinion on the City’s financial statements based on their audit.
An audit is conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that the audit be planned and performed in a manner to obtain a reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting (the Certificate) to the City of
Iowa City, lowa for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2007. The Certificate is the highest form of recognition for excellence in state and local financial
reporting.

In order to be awarded the Certificate, a governmental unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, whose contents conform to program



standards. The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report must satisfy both accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and applicable legal requirements.

The Certificate is valid for a period of one year only. The City has received the Certificate for the
last twenty three consecutive years. I believe our current report continues to conform to the
Certificate requirements and am submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another
certificate.

Responsibility and Acknowledgments

The Department of Finance prepared the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of
Iowa City, Iowa for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. The City Council, as required by law, is
responsible for the complete and accurate preparation of the City’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report. I believe that the information presented is accurate in all material respects and
that this report fairly presents the financial position and results of operations of the various funds
of the City.

The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not have been accomplished without the
efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the City's Finance Department. I would like to
express my appreciation to all members of the department who assisted and contributed to its
preparation. I want to especially recognize the contributions of the City’s Controller, Robin
Marshall, Assistant Controller, Sara Sproule, Internal Auditor, Nickolas Schaul, Senior Accountant,
Justin Armatis and Payroll Accountant, Chris Hurlbert.

Also, I thank the Mayor, members of the City Council and the City Manager for their interest and
support in planning and conducting the financial operations of the City in a dedicated, responsible,
and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

/

Kevin O’Malley
Director of Finance
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Iowa City, Iowa

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Iowa City, Iowa,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
management of the City of Iowa City. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Iowa City, Iowa, as of June 30, 2008, and the
respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 5,
2008, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit.
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The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information listed in the table of
contents are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods
of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit
the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the basic financial statements of the City of Iowa City, Iowa. The introductory section,
combining nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required
by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements of the City of
Iowa City, Iowa. The combining nonmajor fund financial statements and the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we express no
opinion on them.

@/MZ.&?A

Dubuque, Iowa
December 5, 2008
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Iowa City, we present this narrative overview and analysis of the financial
activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. This narrative is intended to be used in
conjunction with additional information that is included in the letter of transmittal, which can be found on
pages 3 — 9 of this report.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of the City of Iowa City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year ending June 30,
2008 by $367,313,000 (net assets). Of this amount, $74,199,000 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to
meet the government’s ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors.

e The City’s total net assets increased by $16,956,000 during the fiscal year. Governmental activities
increased by $9,442,000 and business-type activities increased by $7,514,000.

e At the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $40,421,000, an increase of $3,792,000 in comparison with the prior year. Of this total
amount, approximately $28,177,000, or 70% was unreserved and is available for spending at the City’s
discretion.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s unreserved, undesignated fund balance for the General
Fund was $14,488,000, or 33% of total General Fund expenditures.

e The City’s total debt decreased by $4,165,000, during the current fiscal year. The key factor to this
decrease was the retirement of bonds.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements.
The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements; and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains
other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements: The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in
this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes
and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). 'The governmental activities of the City include Public Safety, Public Works (roads, traffic
controls, and transit), Culture and Recreation, Community and Economic Development, General Government,
and Interest on long-term debt. The business-type activities of the City include Airport, Cable Television,
Housing Authority, Parking, Sanitation, Stormwater Collection, Wastewater Treatment, and Water.
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The government-wide financial statements may be found on pages 26 — 29 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements: A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same function reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.
Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements and is
typically the basis that is used in developing the next annual budget.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison.

The City has four major governmental funds: General Fund, Employee Benefits Fund, Community
Development Block Grant Fund, and Debt Service Fund. Information is presented separately in the
governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for these major funds. Data from all other non-major governmental funds is
combined into a single aggregated presentation and are referenced under a single column as “Other
Governmental Funds”. Individual fund data on each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in
the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for all governmental funds as required by state statute. Budget
comparisons have been provided for the Governmental funds and the Enterprise funds, to demonstrate
compliance with the adopted budget.

The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 30 — 35 of this report.

Proprietary Funds: The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used
to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.
The City uses enterprise funds to account for its Airport, Cable Television, Housing Authority, Parking,
Sanitation, Stormwater Collection, Wastewater Treatment, and Water activities. Internal Service funds are an
accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City’s various functions. The
City has four Internal Service Funds: Equipment Maintenance, Central Services, Loss Reserve, and
Information Technology. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-
type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in
more detail. Parking, Wastewater Treatment, Water, Sanitation, and Housing Authority Funds are considered
to be major funds and are reported individually throughout the report. The other three non-major enterprise
funds are grouped together for reporting purposes and listed under a single heading “Other Enterprise Funds”.
Detailed information for each of the non-major funds is provided in the combining statements on pages 84 —
86. Individual fund data for the Internal Service funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 36 — 41 of this report.
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Fiduciary Funds: Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not available to support the City’s own programs and therefore are not
reflected in the government-wide financial statements. The City has two fiduciary funds: Project Green and
Library Foundation, which are maintained as agency funds.

The basic fiduciary funds financial statements can be found on page 42.

Notes to Financial Statements: The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages 43 — 72 of this report.

Other Information: The combining statements referred to in the above paragraphs in connection with non-
major governmental funds, non-major enterprise funds, and internal service funds are presented immediately
following the notes.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In
the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $367,313,000 at the close of the fiscal year ended June 30,
2008.

By far, the largest portion of the City’s net assets reflect its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, building,
machinery and equipment, improvements other than buildings, and infrastructure), less any related debt to
acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to its
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in
its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt
must be provided from other resources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.

City of Iowa City's Net Assets

June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
activities activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Current and other assets $ 118,167 $ 107,390 $ 95730 $ 94,847 $ 213,897 $ 202,237
Capital assets 157,273 153,380 257,034 255,577 414,307 408,957

Total Assets 275,440 260,770 352,764 350,424 628,204 611,194
Long-term liabilities outstanding 84,442 82,616 110,027 115,332 194,469 197,948
Current and other liabilities 61,305 57,903 5,117 4,986 66,422 62,389

Total Liabilities 145,747 140,519 115,144 120,318 260,891 260,837
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of

related debt 87,723 101,027 160,330 172,518 248,053 273,545
Restricted 23,741 8,181 21,320 23,893 45,061 32,074
Unrestricted 18,229 11,043 55,970 33,695 74,199 44,738

Total Net Assets $ 129,693 $ 120,251 $ 237,620 $ 230,106 $ 367,313 $ 350,357
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A portion of the City’s net assets (12.2% or $45,061,000) represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of the unrestricted net assets (20.2% or
$74,199,000) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors. At the
end of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of
net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type
activities.

Governmental Activities: Governmental activities increased the City’s net assets by $9,442,000. The
increase in net assets of governmental activities is primarily due to expenditures for capital assets less
depreciation expense.

The following is a more detailed review of FY08’s operation.

City of Iowa City's Changes in Net Assets
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
activities activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for services $ 6,379 $ 6,598 $ 34,876 $ 34,397 $ 41,255 $ 40,995
Operating grants and contributions 3,611 3,215 6,281 7,172 9,892 10,387
Capital grants and contributions 1,747 4,283 2,798 4,866 4,545 9,149
General Revenues:
Property taxes 43,400 41,492 - - 43,400 41,492
Road use tax 5,432 5,305 - - 5,432 5,305
Other taxes 1,435 1,412 - - 1,435 1,412
Earnings on investments 3,932 4,045 3,279 3,606 7,211 7,651
Gain on disposal of capital assets - 281 1,260 591 1,260 872
Other 3,509 3,656 454 343 3,963 3,999
Total revenues 69,445 70,287 48,948 50,975 118,393 121,262
Expenses:
Public safety 20,504 16,694 - - 20,504 16,694
Public works 13,727 13,560 - - 13,727 13,560
Culture and recreation 13,460 11,970 - - 13,460 11,970
Community and economic development 1,850 4,680 - - 1,850 4,680
General government 7,433 7,258 - - 7,433 7,258
Interest on long-term debt 3,517 3,459 - - 3,517 3,459
Wastewater Treatment - - 11,757 11,537 11,757 11,537
Water - - 8,804 8,823 8,804 8,823
Sanitation - - 6,868 6,684 6,868 6,684
Housing Authority - - 7,374 6,884 7,374 6,884
Parking - - 3913 4,403 3913 4,403
Airport - - 560 418 560 418
Stormwater - - 1,072 932 1,072 932
Cable Television - - 598 525 598 525
Total expenses 60,491 57,621 40,946 40,206 101,437 97,827
Change in net assets before transfers 8,954 12,666 8,002 10,769 16,956 23,435
Transfers 488 (5,321) (488) 5,321 - -
Change in net assets 9,442 7,345 7,514 16,090 16,956 23,435
Net assets beginning of year 120,251 112,906 230,106 214,016 350,357 326,922
Net assets end of year $ 129,693 $ 120,251 $ 237,620 $ 230,106 $ 367313 $ 350,357

18



Business-type Activities: Business-type activities increased the City’s total assets by $7,514,000. The
increases in net assets were primarily in the Wastewater, Sanitation and Airport funds. For all business-type
activities, revenues exceeded expenses by $8,002,000.

The graphs on the following pages represent a breakdown of revenue by source and expenditures by program
area for governmental and business-type activities.
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental Funds: The financial reporting focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information may
be/is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $40,421,000, an increase of $3,792,000 in comparison with the prior year. Of this total amount,
$28,177,000 constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available to use as working capital for the General
Fund since property tax revenues are received only twice a year and the remainder is available to meet the
future needs of the City. The remainder of the fund balance (30.3%) is reserved to indicate that it is not
available for new spending because it has already been committed. This remainder has been committed 1) to
liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the prior period ($1,518,000), 2) to fund various debt service
payments ($8,691,000), and 3) to fund employee retirement commitments ($1,741,000).

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. As of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the
unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $14,488,000, while General Fund’s total fund balance was
$14,934,000. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund
balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 32.8% of total
General Fund expenditures ($44,178,000), while total fund balance represents 33.8% of that same amount.

The fund balance of the City’s General Fund decreased by $4,162,000 during the current fiscal year. This
was primarily due to funding capital projects from fund balances.

The Bridge, Street, and Traffic Control Construction Fund had a deficit fund balance of ($1,595,000) as
compared to a deficit balance of ($2,799,000) in the prior period. This fund accounts for transactions relating
to the acquisition or construction of major streets, bridges, and traffic control facilities. The deficit is due to
capital expenditures. The City anticipates receiving funds from the lowa Department of Transportation. If
not, bonds will be issued in 2009 to cover the capital expenditures.

The Debt Service Fund had a fund balance of $8,691,000, an increase of $4,402,000 from the prior year, all of
which is reserved for the payment of debt service (i.e. payment of general obligation principal and interest).

Proprietary Funds: The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

The ending net assets of the enterprise funds were $230,820,000, a net asset increase of $7,166,000. This was
primarily due to an increase in capital assets without the issuance of additional debt and a decrease in
liabilities. Of the enterprise funds’ net assets, $160,330,000 is invested in capital assets, net of related debt.
Unrestricted net assets totaled $49,170,000, an increase of $21,927,000 compared to the previous year.
The Internal Service funds showed net assets totaling $19,530,000 as of June 30, 2008, an increase of
$1,560,000 from the previous year.

Budgetary Highlights

The City presents budgetary information as allowed by GASB Statement No. 41. Budgets are based on nine
functional areas as required by state statute, not by fund or fund type.
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The City had two budget amendments during the fiscal year, which is our common practice. These
amendments increased the expenditure budget by $32,676,000 to a total of $157,743,000. This represented a
26.1% increase. The major increase was due to capital projects in governmental and business-type funds due
to timing of completion of projects.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets: The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
June 30, 2008 amounts to $414,307,000 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets,
including land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, equipment, streets, bridges, trails, wastewater
and water systems, and other infrastructure represents the value of resources utilized to provide services to its
citizens. The City’s investment in capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 increased by
$3,893,000 for governmental activities compared to the prior year and increased by $1,457,000 for business-
type activities over the prior year.

The following table reflects the $414,307,000 investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation).
City of Iowa City's Capital Assets

(net of depreciation)
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Land $ 15481 $ 14,130 $ 25921 $ 22,586 $ 41,402 $ 36,716
Buildings 43,645 43,169 77,703 80,759 121,348 123,928
Improvements other than

buildings 3,736 3,589 7,666 8,100 11,402 11,689
Machinery and equipment 12,420 10,556 10,304 11,367 22,724 21,923
Infrastructure 69,997 70,073 124,641 125,449 194,638 195,522
Construction in progress 11,994 11,863 10,799 7,316 22,793 19,179

Total $ 157,273 $ 153,380 $ 257,034 $ 255,577 $ 414,307 $ 408,957

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

e The parking department purchased land at a cost of $3,053,000 which will be used for a future parking
structure that includes workforce housing.

® Airport projects included runway design, grading, lighting, paving and runway extension. CIP at fiscal
year end totaled $4,516,000.

e A variety of street and bridge construction in new residential areas and replacement and expansion of
existing infrastructure amounted to $7,191,000. This includes the continuation of the McCollister
Boulevard extension project at $2,439,000, intersection improvements of $980,000 at
Gilbert\Prentiss\Bowery streets and the extension and pavement of Lower West Branch Road at
$1,948,000.

e The demolition and reconstruction of fire station #2 at a cost of $1,336,000.

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 to the financial statements.

Debt Administration: At the end of the fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of
$182,435,000. Of this amount, $87,090,000 comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the City.
However, 5.6% of this total, $4,913,000 is debt that serves enterprise funds and is abated by their charges for
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services. The remaining $95,345,000 represents revenue bonds secured solely by specific revenue sources.

City of Iowa City's Outstanding Debt
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
General obligation bonds $ 82,177 $ 80,351 $ 4,913 $ 5,489 $ 87,090 $ 85,840
Revenue bonds - - 95,345 100,760 95,345 100,760
Total $ 82,177 $ 80,351 $ 100,258 $ 106,249 $ 182435 $ 186,600

During the current fiscal year the City’s total bonded debt decreased by $4,165,000.

e The City issued $9,150,000 in General Obligation bonds during FY08. The bonds were used to finance
the cost of the City’s 2008 Capital Improvements Programs.

The City continues to have the same excellent bond rating on its General Obligation bonds that it has had for
the past several years. This rating is given to those bonds judged to be of the best quality and carrying the
smallest degree of investment risks. The City's bond ratings by Moody’s Investors Services, Inc. as of June
30, 2008 were as follows:

General obligation bonds Aaa
Parking revenue bonds

Wastewater treatment revenue bonds
Water revenue bonds

> > >

The City continues to operate well under the State debt capacity debt limitations. State statute limits the amount
of General Obligation Debt outstanding to 5% of the assessed value of all taxable property in Iowa City. The
current debt limitation for the City is $197,689,049. With outstanding General Obligation Debt applicable to
this limit of $87,090,000 we are utilizing 44.05% of this limit.

More detailed information on debt administration is provided in Note 6 of the financial statements.
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

Throughout the month of June, city staff and the citizens of Iowa City dealt with the Iowa River which
flooded central parts of the city. The City of lowa City was among several cities in lowa that received a
Presidential Disaster declaration. That disaster declaration brought the Federal Emergency Management
Agency (FEMA) technical and financial assistance to Iowa City. As in many such disasters, parts of the
community experienced financial hardships while it brought financial opportunities to others. In fiscal year
2009 we expect to rebuild and enhance the affected areas.

The City’s expectation is continued constraints by the State property tax formula. Therefore, the City will not
have opportunities for new initiatives and will strive to maintain current service delivery levels.

Requests for Information
This report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of lowa City’s finances for all of those with
an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report,

or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to City of Iowa City, Finance
Department, 410 E. Washington Street, lowa City, 1A, 52240.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Assets
Equity in pooled cash and investments
Receivables:
Property tax
Accounts and unbilled usage
Interest
Notes
Internal balances
Due from other governments
Prepaid insurance
Inventories
Restricted assets:
Equity in pooled cash and investments
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress

Other capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Accrued liabilities
Interest payable

Deposits

Due to other governments
Unearned revenue
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year:
Employee vested benefits
Bonds payable

Due in more than one year:
Employee vested benefits
Notes Payable
Bonds payable
Landfill closure/post-closure liability

Total liabilities

June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
$ 48,552  § 43,845 92,397
43,839 - 43,839
144 3,881 4,025
554 1,361 1,915
13,532 1,562 15,094
(8,501) 8,501 -
4,792 707 5,499
9 - 9
509 364 873
14,737 35,509 50,246
27,475 36,720 64,195
129,798 220,314 350,112
275,440 352,764 628,204
4,528 1,037 5,565
1,331 549 1,880
3,764 336 4,100
273 2,412 2,685
831 677 1,508
- 106 106
50,578 - 50,578
1,050 266 1,316
8,349 6,121 14,470
913 228 1,141
211 - 211
73,919 93,314 167,233
- 10,098 10,098
145,747 115,144 260,891
(continued)
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (continued)

June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 87,723  $ 160,330 248,053
Restricted for or by:
Employee benefits 1,741 - 1,741
Capital projects 11,118 - 11,118
Debt service 8,691 - 8,691
Streets 2,121 - 2,121
Other purposes 70 - 70
Bond ordinance - 18,138 18,138
State statute - 700 700
Future improvements - 222 222
Grant agreement - 2,260 2,260
Unrestricted 18,229 55,970 74,199
Total net assets $ 129,693 $ 237,620 367,313

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY,IOWA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs: Expenses for Services Contributions Contributions
Governmental activities:
Public safety $ 20,504 $ 3019 $ 241 % 10
Public works 13,727 1,047 1,548 1,737
Culture and recreation 13,460 680 31 -
Community and economic development 1,850 - 1,791 -
General government 7,433 1,633 - -
Interest on long-term debt 3,517 - - -
Total governmental activities 60,491 6,379 3,611 1,747
Business-type activities:
Wastewater Treatment 11,757 12,318 - 577
Water 8,804 8,195 - 314
Sanitation 6,868 7,853 - -
Housing Authority 7,374 149 6,281 17
Parking 3,913 4,673 - 8
Airport 560 258 - 1,580
Stormwater 1,072 616 - 302
Cable television 598 814 - -
Total business-type activities 40,946 34,876 6,281 2,798
Total $ 101,437  $ 41,255 % 9,892 § 4,545

General revenues:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Road use tax

Hotel/motel tax

Gas and electric tax

Earnings on investments

Gain on disposal of capital assets
Miscellaneous

Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Changes in net assets

Net assets beginning of year
Net assets end of year

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets

Governmental  Business-type
Activities Activities Total

$ (17,234)  $ - (17,234)
(9,395) - (9,395)
(12,749) - (12,749)
(59) - (59)
(5,800) - (5,800)
(3,517) - (3,517)
(48,754) - (48,754)

- 1,138 1,138
- (295) (295)

- 985 985
- (927) (927)

- 768 768

- 1,278 1,278
- (154) (154)

- 216 216

- 3,009 3,009
(48,754) 3,009 (45,745)

43,400 - 43,400

5,432 - 5,432

734 - 734

701 - 701

3,932 3,279 7,211

- 1,260 1,260

3,509 454 3,963

488 (488) -

58,196 4,505 62,701

9,442 7,514 16,956

120,251 230,106 350,357

$ 129,693 $ 237,620 367,313
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Assets

Equity in pooled cash and investments
Receivables:

Property tax

Accounts and unbilled usage

Interest

Notes
Advances to other funds
Due from other governments
Inventories
Restricted assets:

Equity in pooled cash and investments

Total assets

CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2008

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Special Revenue

Community
Development Other
Employee Block Debt Governmental
General Benefits Grant Service Funds Total
17,384  $ 1,593 $ 25 $ 7,638 $ 5598  $ 32,238
23,818 8,989 - 10,998 34 43,839
125 - - - 16 141
205 17 - 143 46 411
113 - 10,936 1,934 549 13,532
- - 18 228 - 246
2,716 200 5 - 1,702 4,623
188 - - - - 188
2,013 - - - 12,724 14,737
46,562 $ 10,799  § 10984 § 20,941  $ 20,669 § 109,955
(continued)
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

BALANCE SHEET (continued)
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Special Revenue

Community
Development Other
Employee Block Debt Governmental
General Benefits Grant Service Funds Total
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 1,429 $ 1 3 14 3 -3 2282 % 3,726
Contracts payable - - - - 1,331 1,331
Accrued liabilities 1,606 2 8 - 88 1,704
Advances from other funds 1,719 - - - 228 1,947
Deferred revenue 26,048 9,055 10,954 12,250 1,688 59,995
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Deposits 826 - - - 5 831
Total liabilities 31,628 9,058 10,976 12,250 5,622 69,534
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Inventories 188 - - - - 188
Encumbrances 152 - - - 1,366 1,518
Debt service - - - 8,091 - 8,091
Employee retirement commitments - 1,741 - - - 1,741
Perpetual care 106 - - - - 106
Unreserved
Undesignated:
General fund 14,488 - - - 14,488
Special revenue funds - - 8 - 2,563 2,571
Capital projects funds - - - - 11,118 11,118
Total fund balances 14,934 1,741 8 8,601 15,047 40,421
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 46,562  $ 10,799 § 10,984  $ 20,941 $ 20,669 $ 109,955

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF THE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Total governmental fund balances $ 40,421

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets are different because:

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs
of certain activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities
of the internal service funds are included in governmental
activities in the statement of net assets. 19,530

Prepaid insurance benefits future periods and is included in
governmental activities in the statement of net assets. 9

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds:

Notes receivable - Earned but unavailable 9417

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 151,727

Accrued compensated absences are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (1,859)

Bonds payable are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the funds. (82,268)

Notes payable are not due and payable in the current period

and therefore are not reported in the funds. (211)
Accrued interest on bonds (273)
Internal balance due to integration of internal service funds (6,800)

Total net assets of governmental activities $ 129,693

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development
General government
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of debt
Sale of capital assets
Premium on issuance of bonds
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources and (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund Balances, Beginning

Fund Balances, Ending

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Special Revenue

Community
Development Other
Employee Block Debt Governmental
General Benefits Grant Service Funds Total

$ 23,608 $ 8876 $ - 9,268 $ 3,083 $ 44,835
1,270 - - - - 1,270
3,795 - 1,623 - 7,346 12,764
1,993 195 - - 40 2,228
2,413 - - 240 553 3,206
3,346 - 260 100 271 3,977
36,425 9,071 1,883 9,608 11,293 68,280
17,946 259 - - 500 18,705
6,357 - - - 5,751 12,108
10,395 - - - 308 10,703
994 - 1,596 - 1,847 4,437

6,737 412 - - 58 7,207

- - - 7,323 - 7,323

- - - 3,556 - 3,556

1,749 - 3 - 10,059 11,811
44,178 671 1,599 10,879 18,523 75,850
(7,753) 8,400 284 (1,271) (7,230) (7,570)

- - - - 9,150 9,150

111 - - - - 111

- - - - 16 16

8,340 - - 5,673 11,400 25,413
(4,860) (8,208) (245) - (10,015) (23,328)
3,591 (8,208) (245) 5,673 10,551 11,362
(4,162) 192 39 4,402 3,321 3,792
19,096 1,549 (31) 4,289 11,726 36,629

$ 14,934  $ 1,741  § 8 8,691 § 15047  § 40,421
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CITY OF IOWA CITY

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 3,792

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental
activities report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the
life of the asset. Capital outlays and contributed capital assets exceeded
depreciation expense in the current year as follows:

Expenditures for capital assets $ 10,463

Transfers of capital assets (to)\from enterprise funds - net (1,675)

Capital assets contributed 444

Depreciation expense (5,511) 3,721

Bond proceeds are reported as other financing sources in governmental funds
and thus contribute to the change in fund balance. In the statement of net
assets, however, issuing debt increases long-term liabilities and does not affect
the statement of activities. Similarly, repayment of principal is an expenditure in
the governmental funds but reduces the liability in the statement of net assets.

Debt issued (9,150)

Premium on bonds issued (16)

Repayments of debt 7,323

Amortization of premium 16 (1,827)

Because some revenues will not be collected for several months after the
City's year end, they are not considered available revenues and are deferred
in the governmental funds. 2,636

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds:
Change in accrued compensated absences 10
Change in accrued interest on debt 23

In the statement of activities, only the gain on the sale of the capital assets is
recognized, whereas in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale
increased financial resources. Thus, the change in net assets differs from the
change in fund balance by the cost of the capital asset sold. (118)

Prepaid items in the governmental funds have been recorded

as expenditures when paid. However, the statement of activities will report

these items as expenses in the period that the corresponding net asset is

exhausted. (8)
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs

of certain activities to individual funds. The net revenue of certain activities of
internal service funds is reported with governmental activities. 1,213

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 9,442

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities -
Other Internal
Wastewater Housing  Enterprise Service
Parking  Treatment Water Sanitation  Authority  Funds Total Funds
Assets
Current assets:
Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 3580 $ 8911 $ 12,807 $ 12,851 $3282 $ 2,405 $ 43,845 $ 16,314
Receivables:
Accounts and unbilled usage 128 1,310 847 1,336 4 256 3,881 3
Interest 54 779 226 218 49 35 1,361 143
Notes 170 - - 9 1,383 - 1,562 -
Advances to other funds - - - 5,974 - - 5,974 -
Due from other governments - - 1 42 32 632 707 169
Inventories - - 364 - - - 364 321
Total current assets 3,941 11,000 14,245 20,430 4,750 3,328 57,694 16,950
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 2,161 14,332 4,743 11,896 2,260 117 35,509 -
Capital assets:
Land 6,991 695 6,296 1,732 726 9,480 25,920 45
Buildings 25,036 59,509 23,461 999 5,455 4,304 118,764 831
Improvements other than buildings 166 7,365 2,331 121 9 421 10,413 50
Machinery and equipment 398 9,833 10,386 176 115 603 21,511 12,776
Infrastructure - 85,785 44,203 10,873 - 34,485 175,346 1,006
Accumulated depreciation (12,574)  (54,497) (16,852) (8,410)  (3,423) (9,964) (105,720) (9,282)
Construction in progress - 795 2,936 673 230 6,166 10,800 120
Total noncurrent assets 22,178 123,817 77,504 18,060 5,372 45,612 292,543 5,546
Total assets 26,119 134,817 91,749 38,490 10,122 48,940 350,237 22,496
(continued)
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (continued)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities -
Other Internal
Wastewater Housing  Enterprise Service
Parking  Treatment Water Sanitation  Authority ~ Funds Total Funds
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 38 $ 101 $ 355 $ 225 $ 8 $ 235 § 1,037 § 802
Contracts payable - - 24 75 - 450 549 -
Accrued liabilities 131 134 207 216 71 71 830 2,164
Advances from other funds - - - - - 1,205 1,205 -
Due to other governments - - 22 74 10 - 106 -
Interest payable 298 1,494 620 - - - 2,412 -
Bonded debt payable (net of unamortized discounts) 366 4,206 1,549 - - - 6,121 -
Total current liabilities 833 5,935 2,777 590 164 1,961 12,260 2,966
Noncurrent liabilities:
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Deposits 6 - 411 11 239 10 677 -
Advances from other funds 3,050 - - - 18 - 3,068 -
Bonded debt payable (net of unamortized discounts) 9,596 55,763 27,955 - - - 93,314 -
Landfill closure/postclosure liability - - - 10,098 - - 10,098 -
Total noncurrent liabilities 12,652 55,763 28,366 10,109 257 10 107,157 -
Total liabilities 13,485 61,698 31,143 10,699 421 1,971 119,417 2,966
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 10,055 49,516 45,988 6,164 3,112 45,495 160,330 5,546
Restricted by bond ordinance 1,635 12,838 3,665 - - - 18,138 -
Restricted by state statute - - - 700 - - 700 -
Restricted for future improvements 222 - - - - - 222 -
Restricted by grant agreement - - - - 2,260 - 2,260 -
Unrestricted 722 10,765 10,953 20,927 4,329 1,474 49,170 13,984

Total net assets $12,634 $73,119 $ 60,606 $ 27,791 $9,701 $46,969 230,820 $ 19,530

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities
related to enterprise funds. 6,800
Net assets of business-type activities $ 237,620

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:
Personal services
Commodities
Services and charges

Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets
Operating grants
Interest income
Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before capital contributions
and transfers

Capital contributions
Transfers in
Transfers out

Change in net assets

Net Assets, Beginning

Net Assets, Ending

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

related to enterprise funds.

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities -
Other Internal
Wastewater Housing Enterprise Service
Parking  Treatment = Water  Sanitation Authority  Funds Total Funds
$ 4673 $12,318 $ 8195 $ 7853 $ 149 $ 1688 § 34876 § 15443
84 75 134 79 67 15 454 -

4,757 12,393 8,329 7,932 216 1,703 35,330 15,443
1,691 1,651 2,160 2,212 871 702 9,287 1,961

63 606 1,348 305 14 115 2,451 2,943

700 2,324 1,840 3,889 6,324 537 15,614 8,744
2,454 4,581 5,348 6,406 7,209 1,354 27,352 13,648
880 4,181 2,065 596 180 889 8,791 1,188
3,334 8,762 7,413 7,002 7,389 2,243 36,143 14,836
1,423 3,631 916 930 (7,173) (540) (813) 607

- (%) ) - 17 1,250 1,260 62

- - - - 6,281 - 6,281 -

238 944 931 776 263 127 3,279 726
(600) (3,041) (1,426) - - - (5,067) -
(362) (2,102) (497) 776 6,561 1,377 5,753 788
1,061 1,529 419 1,706 (612) 837 4,940 1,395

8 607 1,003 - 17 2,885 4,520 3

- - - - 245 450 695 228

(206) (69) (820) (145) - (1,749) (2,989) (66)
863 2,067 602 1,561 (350) 2,423 7,166 1,560
11,771 71,052 60,004 26,230 10,051 44,546 17,970
$12,634  $73,119 $60,606 $27,791 $ 9,701  $46,969 $ 19,530

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities
348
$ 7514

Change in net assets of business-type activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Grants received
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Repayment/(payment) of notes receivable
Advances from other funds
Advances to other funds
Net cash flows from noncapital financing activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing
Activities
Capital grants received
Acquisition and construction of property and
equipment
Proceeds from sale of property
Proceeds from issuance of refunding debt (principal
less discount)
Principal paid on bonded debt
Interest paid on bonded debt
Net cash flows from capital and related financing

activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest on investments

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending

CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities -
Other Internal
Wastewater Housing Enterprise Service
Parking Treatment Water Sanitation  Authority Funds Total Funds

$ 4721 $ 12467 $ 8472 § 7538 $ 205 $ 1412 $34815 § 15,339
(758) (2,930) (2,977) (3,512) 6,422) $ (525) (17,124) $  (11,272)
(1,702) (1,645) (2,154) (2,190) (863) $ (691) (9,245)  $ (1,782)
2,261 7,892 3,341 1,836 (7,080) 196 8,446 2,285

- - - - 6,281 - 6,281 -

- - - - 245 356 601 228
(206) (38) (756) (145) - (1,702) (2,847) (66)

- - - 5 (65) - (60) -

3,050 - - - - 25 3,075 -

- - - (3,874) - - (3,874) -

2,844 (38) (756) (4,014) 6,461 (1,321) 3,176 162

- - - - 17 1,580 1,597 -
(3,119) (44) (1,345) (1,320) (454) (1,998) (8,280) (1,491)

- - - - 439 1,610 2,049 78

- - 3,335 - - - 3,335 -

(356) (4,105) (4,867) - - - (9,328) -
(605) (3,070) (1,429) - - - (5,104) -
(4,080) (7,219) (4,306) (1,320) 2 1,192 (15,731) (1,413)
267 672 1,013 970 306 131 3,359 803
1,292 1,307 (708) (2,528) (311) 198 (750) 1,837
4,458 21,936 18,258 27,275 5,853 2,324 80,104 14,477

$ 5750 $ 23243 $17,550 § 24747 $ 5542 $ 2,522 $79.354 § 16,314
(continued)
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities -
Other Internal
Wastewater Housing Enterprise Service
Parking Treatment = Water  Sanitation Authority  Funds Total Funds
Reconciliation of operating income (loss)
to net cash flows from operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $1423 $ 3631 $ 916 $ 930 $(7,173) $ (540) $ 813) $ 607
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
(loss) to net cash flows from operating activities:
Depreciation expense 880 4,181 2,065 596 180 889 8791 $ 1,188
Changes in:
Receivables:
Accounts and unbilled usage (34) 73 109 (520) 3) (16) 391 3)
Due from other governments - 1 - 116 14 (275) (144) (101)
Inventories - - 29 - - - 29 (42)
Accounts payable 5 - 206 134 (78) 127 394 457
Accrued liabilities (11) 6 6 22 8 11 42 179
Due to other governments - (24) (33) 6) - (63) -
Deposits 2) - 34 10 (22) - 20 -
Landfill closure/postclosure liability - - - 581 - - 581 -
Total adjustments 838 4,261 2,425 906 93 736 9,259 1,678
Net cash flows from operating activities $2261 $ 7,892 $3341 $ 1836 $(7,080) $ 196 $ 8446 $ 2,285
Noncash Investing, Capital, and
Financing Activities:
Contributions of capital assets from government
and others $ 8 3 607 $1,003 $ - $ - $2979 $ 4,597 3
Contributions of capital assets to government
and others $ - 8 @B $ ) $ - % - @ s (142) -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Agency
Funds
Assets
Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 216
Accounts receivable 5
Interest receivable 2
Total assets $ 223
Liabilities
Accrued liabilities $ 9
Due to agency 214
Total liabilities $ 223

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008

1. Accounting Policies

The City of Iowa City, lowa, (the City) was incorporated April 6, 1853, and operates under the
Council/Manager form of government. The City provides a broad range of services to its citizens
including general government, a mass transportation system, public safety, streets, parks, and cultural
facilities. It also operates an airport, parking facilities, water treatment, wastewater treatment, stormwater
collection, sanitation collection and disposal (including landfill operations), cable television, and a
housing authority.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant accounting
policies of the City are described below.

The Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, the City includes all of its funds, organizations, agencies, boards,
commissions, and authorities. The City has also considered all potential component units for which it is
financially accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship
with the City are such that exclusion would cause the City’s financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has set forth criteria to be considered in
determining financial accountability. These criteria include appointing a voting majority of an
organization’s governing body, and (1) the ability of the City to impose its will on that organization or (2)
the potential for the organization to provide specific benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on
the City. There were no component units required to be included.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for
support.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported as general revenues.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City’s water and sewer function and
various other functions of the government. Eliminations of these charges would distort the direct costs
and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

June 30, 2008

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in
the fund financial statements.

Description of Funds

These financial statements include all funds owned or administered by the City or for which the City acts
as custodian.

The City maintains its records on a modified cash basis of accounting under which only cash receipts,
cash disbursements and encumbrances, investments, and bonded debt are recorded. These modified cash
basis accounting records have been adjusted to the accrual or modified accrual basis, as necessary, to
prepare the accompanying financial statements in accordance with GAAP.

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered to be a separate
accounting entity. The fund categories are governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Each fund is
accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities,
net assets, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. The individual funds account for the
governmental resources allocated to them for the purpose of carrying on specific activities in accordance
with laws, regulations, or other restrictions.

Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its “measurement
focus.” The government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of
economic resources measurement focus and use the accrual basis of accounting. Agency funds do not
have a measurement focus and use the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual method, revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. The City applies
all applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board pronouncements issued on or before November 30,
1989, except those that conflict with GASB pronouncements, in accounting and reporting for these funds.

All governmental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus, which
generally includes only current assets and current liabilities on the balance sheet. The modified accrual
basis of accounting is used for these funds. Under the modified accrual basis, revenue is recognized when
susceptible to accrual, which is in the period in which it becomes both available (collectible within the
current period or soon thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period) and measurable (the
amount of the transaction can be determined). Revenue accrued includes property taxes,
intergovernmental revenue, and interest earned on investments (if they are collected within 60 days after
the year-end). Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest
on long-term debt, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments,
are recorded only when payment is due.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

June 30, 2008

The Employee Benefits Fund is used to account for the employee benefits related to those
employees who are paid through governmental fund types, which are funded by a separate
property tax levy.

The Community Development Block Grant Fund accounts for revenue from the U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Development’s Community Development Block Grant programs.

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of general
long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Parking Fund is used to account for the operation and maintenance of the “on” and “off”
street public parking facilities.

The Wastewater Treatment Fund is used to account for the operation and maintenance of the
wastewater treatment facility and sanitary sewer system.

The Water Fund is used to account for the operation and maintenance of the water system.

The Sanitation Fund is used to account for the operation and maintenance of the solid waste
collection system and landfill.

The Housing Authority Fund is used to account for the operations and activities of the City’s low
and moderate income housing assistance and public housing programs.

Additionally, the City reports internal service funds to account for goods and services provided by one
department to other City departments on a cost reimbursement basis. The funds in this category are the
Equipment Maintenance Fund, Central Services Fund, Loss Reserve Fund, and the Information
Technology Fund.

The City also reports fiduciary funds which are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statement because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s own programs. The
accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. The City has two
fiduciary funds which are maintained as agency funds, with no attempt to create an ongoing fund balance.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the City’s enterprise funds and of the City’s internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and
services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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Uses of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue, expenditures and expenses, as appropriate,
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Material estimates that are
particularly susceptible to significant change in the near-term relate to the determination of landfill
closure and post-closure care costs, total capacity of the landfill at closure, and calculation of the costs of
claims incurred, but not reported.

Cash and Investments

The City maintains one primary demand deposit account through which the majority of its cash resources
are processed. Substantially all investment activity is carried on by the City in an investment pool, except
for those funds required to maintain their investments separately. The earnings on the pooled investments
are allocated to the funds on a systematic basis. All investments are stated at fair value except for the
Iowa Public Agency Investment Trust (IPAIT) which is valued at amortized cost pursuant to Rule 2a-7
under the Investment Company Act of 1940.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, restricted and nonrestricted investments with a maturity
of three months or less when purchased are considered cash equivalents.

Receivables and Revenue Recognition

Property tax receivable is recognized in governmental funds on the levy or lien date, which is the date that
the tax asking is certified by the City to the County Board of Supervisors. Current year delinquent
property tax receivable represents unpaid taxes from the current year. The succeeding year property tax
receivable represents taxes certified by the City to be collected in the next fiscal year for the purposes set
out in the budget for the next fiscal year. By statute, the City is required to certify its budget to the County
Auditor by March 15 of each year for the subsequent fiscal year. However, by statute, the tax asking and
budget certification for the following fiscal year becomes effective on the first day of that year. Although
the succeeding year property tax receivable has been recorded, the related revenue is deferred in both the
government-wide and fund financial statements and will not be recognized as revenue until the year for
which it is levied.

Federal and state grants are recorded as receivables and the revenue is recognized during the period in
which the City fulfills the requirements for receiving the grant awards, as long as the susceptible to
accrual criteria are met.

Income from investments in all fund types and from charges for services in proprietary fund types is
recognized when earned. Licenses and permits, fines and forfeitures, fees and refunds, charges for
services (in governmental fund types), miscellaneous, and other revenues are recorded as revenue when
received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually received.
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Inventories

Inventories are recognized only in those funds in which they are material to the extent of affecting
operations. For the City, these are the General Fund, Water Fund, and the Equipment Maintenance Fund.
Inventories are reported at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. The costs of governmental fund
type inventories are recorded as expenditures when purchased.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, buildings, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. The City follows the policy of not
capitalizing an asset with an initial, individual cost of less than $50,000 for infrastructure assets and
$5,000 for remaining assets. Such assets are recorded at original purchase cost or at fair value at the date
of donation when received as donated properties.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Infrastructure 3 - 100 years
Buildings and structures 20 — 50 years
Improvements other than buildings 15— 50 years
Vehicles 2 —20 years
Other equipment 5 —30 years

Bond Premiums and Discounts

Debt issued at a premium or discount is recorded net of the unamortized premium or discount. In the
governmental funds, premiums and discounts are recorded entirely as other financing sources or uses in
the year of issuance. In the proprietary funds and the government-wide statements, they are amortized
over the life of the bonds.

Compensated Absences

Permanent City employees accumulate vacation and sick leave hours for subsequent use or for payment
upon death, resignation, or retirement. The City pays its employees (except firefighters) one-half of the
accumulated sick leave at the time of termination on the basis of the employee’s then effective hourly
base salary, provided that the dollar amount of the payment may be up to, but not exceed, the amount that
an employee would be paid if the employee had terminated on June 28, 1985. Employees hired on or after
June 29, 1985, are not eligible for payment of accumulated sick leave upon termination, death, or
retirement.

Pensions

The provision for pension cost is recorded on the accrual basis (based on statutorily determined
contribution rates), and the City’s policy is to fund pension costs as they accrue.
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Landfill Closing Costs

Costs expected to be incurred in ultimately closing the present landfill site are being systematically
provided for through charges to expense over the estimated useful life of the landfill on the basis of
capacity used (see Note 13).

Budgetary and Legal Appropriation and Amendment Policies

The City prepares and adopts an annual function budget, as prescribed by lowa statutes, for all funds
except internal service and agency funds. This is formalized in a separate budgetary report, the Financial
Plan. This budget is adopted on or before March 15 of each year to become effective July 1, and
constitutes the City’s appropriation for each program and purpose specified therein until amended. The
adopted budget must include the following:

a. Expenditures for each function:

Public safety

Public works

Health and social services

Culture and recreation

Community and economic development

General government

Debt service

Capital outlay

Business-type
b. The amount to be raised by property taxation
c. Income from sources other than property taxation
d. Transfers in and transfers out

The legal level of control (the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is the
function level for all funds combined, rather than at the individual fund level. Management can transfer
appropriations within a function, within a fund type, and between fund types, without the approval of the
governing body so long as the total budget by function area will not be exceeded. It is necessary,
therefore, to aggregate the expenditures of the budgeted activities within the governmental fund types
with the expenditures of the budgeted activities within the enterprise funds on a function basis, and to
compare such function totals to function budgeted totals in order to demonstrate legal compliance with
the budget. The City’s budget for revenue focuses on the individual fund revenue rather than on
aggregated fund totals.

The City formally adopts budgets for several funds that are not required by state law to be included in the
annual function budget. Annual operating budgets are adopted for the internal service funds for
management control purposes. Such budgets, however, are not legally required to be adopted under state
statutes. These budgets are adopted and amended at the same time and in the same manner as the City’s
annual function budget.
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A City budget for the current fiscal year may be amended for any of the following purposes as prescribed
by lowa statute:

a. To permit the appropriation and expenditure of unexpended, unencumbered cash balances on hand at
the end of the preceding fiscal year.

b. To permit the appropriation and expenditure of amounts anticipated being available from sources
other than property taxation.

c. To permit transfers between funds.

d. To permit transfers between programs.

A budget amendment must be prepared and adopted in the same manner as the original budget. The City’s
budget was amended as prescribed, and the effects of those amendments are shown in the accompanying
budgetary comparison schedule. The original budget was increased by $31,555,000 in revenues and other
financing sources and by $51,775,000 in expenditures and other financing uses. Appropriations as
adopted or amended, and not encumbered, lapse at the end of the fiscal year.

As allowed by GASB Statement No. 41, Budgetary Comparison Schedules — Perspective Differences, the
City presents budgetary comparison schedules as required supplementary information based on the
program structure of nine functional areas as required by state statute for its legally adopted budget.

Restricted Assets

Assets within the individual funds, which can be designated by the City Council for any use within the
fund’s purpose, are considered to be unrestricted assets. Assets, which are restricted for specific uses by
bonded debt requirements, grant provisions, or other requirements, are classified as restricted assets.
Liabilities which are payable from restricted assets, are classified as such.

2. Compliance and Accountability

At June 30, 2008 the Capital Project Fund for bridge, street, and traffic control construction reported a
deficit fund balance of $1,595,000. The deficit is due to capital expenditures. The City anticipates
receiving funds from the Iowa Department of Transportation. If not, bonds will be issued in 2009 to
cover the capital expenditures.

3. Cash and Pooled Investments
The City’s deposits in banks at June 30, 2008 were entirely covered by federal depository insurance,
national credit union administration, or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the

Code of lowa. This chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure there
will be no loss of public funds.
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The City is authorized by statute to invest public funds in obligations of the United States government, its
agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit at federally insured
Iowa depository institutions approved by City Council and secured pursuant to the limitations set forth in
Chapter 12C of the Code of lowa; prime eligible bankers acceptances; certain high rated commercial
paper; perfected repurchase agreements; lowa Public Agency Investment Trust (IPAIT); certain
registered open—end management investment companies registered with the Securities & Exchange
Commission under the federal Investment Company Act of 1940; certain joint investment trusts; and
warrants or improvement certificates of a drainage district.

Investments are stated at fair value. In addition, the City had investments in the lowa Public Agency
Investment Trust, which are valued at an amortized cost of $3,000,000 pursuant to Rule 2a-7 under the
Investment Company Act of 1940.

Interest rate risk. The City’s investment policy limits the investment of general and operating funds to
one year, unless a temporary extension of maturities is approved by the City Council. In such cases, the
average maturity of each fund’s portfolio shall not exceed 397 days. Funds not identified as operating
funds may be invested in instruments whose maturities do not exceed five years at the time of purchase.

Credit risk. State law limits investments to commercial paper and corporate bonds to the top two ratings
issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. It is the City’s policy to comply with
rating restrictions. The investment in Iowa Public Agency Investment Trust is not rated by Moody’s
Investors service as it is a state security that is backed by the full faith and credit of the issuing
government and is not subject to credit risk.

Concentration of credit risk. The City investment policy limits the amount that may be invested in any
one issuer to a maximum amount approved by the City Council.

The aforementioned Iowa Public Agency Investment Trust (IPAIT) represents an investment in a pool
managed by others. IPAIT is a common trust established under lowa law pursuant to lowa Code Chapter
28E in 1987 to enable eligible lowa public agencies to safely and effectively invest their available
operating and reserve funds. IPAIT is registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940.

The IPAIT portfolios have followed established money market mutual fund investment parameters
designed to maintain a $1 per unit net asset value since inception and were registered with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC).

Due to legal and budgetary reasons, the general fund is assigned a portion of the investment earnings

associated with other funds. These funds are the employee benefits, other shared revenue, and sanitation
funds.
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4. Interfund Balances and Transfers

Interfund balances for the year ended June 30, 2008, consisted of the following:

Advances from

Community

Development Debt

Block Grant Service Sanitation Total
Advances to:
General $ - $ - $ 1,719,388 1,719,388
Nonmajor governmental - 228,216 - 228,216
Parking - - 3,050,000 3,050,000
Housing Authority 18,000 - - 18,000
Nonmajor enterprise - - 1,205,088 1,205,088
Total $ 18,000 $ 228,216 $ 5,974,476 6,220,692

Interfund balances at June 30, 2008, include advances due to/from other funds. Advances to/from other
funds represent amounts for construction loans and land. $1,181,863 of the $1,205,088 advances to the
Non-Major Enterprise Funds and $2,450,183 of the $3,050,000 advance to the Parking Fund are not
expected to be repaid within the next year. $1,503,545 of the $1,719,388 advances to the General Fund
and $218,275 of the $228,216 advance to the Non-Major Governmental Funds are not expected to be
repaid within the next year. None of the $18,000 advance to Housing Authority is expected to be repaid

within the next year.
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Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2008, consisted of the following:

Transfer to:

General
Debt service

Nonmajor governmental
Housing Authority
Nonmajor enterprise
Internal Service

Total Transfer to

Transfer from

Community
Employee Development Nonmajor

General Benefits Block Grant Governmental Parking
$ - $ 7,892,024 $ - $ 58,304 $ 200,000
1,005,968 - - 3,153,505 -
3,704,105 316,297 - 6,558,884 -
- - 245,080 - -
112,000 - - 244,399 -
37,599 - - - 5,704
$ 4,859,672 $ 8,208,321 $§ 245,080 $ 10,015,092 $§ 205,704

(continued)

In the fund financial statements, total transfers out of $26,383,000 are greater than total transfers in of
$26,337,202 because of the treatment of transfers of capital assets to the governmental activities capital
assets. During the year, construction in progress related to construction along Highway 6 with a value of
$46,672 was transferred to governmental activities capital assets from Stormwater. No amounts were
reported in the governmental funds, as the amounts did not involve the transfer of financial resources.
However, Stormwater did report a transfer out for the capital resources given.

Transfers are used to move revenues and bond proceeds from the fund that State statutes or the budget
requires to collect them to the fund that the State statutes or the budget requires to expend them.
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Transfer from

Wastewater Nonmajor Internal Total

Treatment Water Sanitation Enterprise Service Transfer from
$ 14,699 $ 14,699 $ - $ 160,171 - $ 8,339,897
- - - 1,513,964 - 5,673,437

- 718,068 7,554 28,573 66,221 11,399,702

- - - - - 245,080

30,653 63,561 - - - 450,613
24,085 24,085 137,000 - - 228,473

$ 69,437 $ 820413 $ 144,554 $ 1,702,708 66,221 26,337,202
Transfer to governmental activities capital assets from enterprise funds 46,672
8 26383874
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Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows:

Governmental activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings

Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings

Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Acquisitions Disposals

Beginning and and Balance
July 1, 2007 Transfers Transfers June 30, 2008
$ 14,130,588 $ 1,377,157 $ 26,000 $ 15,481,745
11,862,687 10,091,869 9,960,419 11,994,137
25,993,275 11,469,026 9,986,419 27,475,882
56,930,937 1,949,349 64,036 58,816,250
4,873,471 341,520 7,000 5,207,991
33,197,913 4,982,285 2,380,607 35,799,591
88,790,660 1,976,772 53,579 90,713,853
183,792,981 9,249,926 2,505,222 190,537,685
13,761,566 1,466,528 56,536 15,171,558
1,284,074 194,874 7,000 1,471,948
22,642,492 3,003,366 2,265,659 23,380,199
18,717,659 2,034,302 34,918 20,717,043
56,405,791 6,699,070 2,364,113 60,740,748
127,387,190 2,550,856 141,109 129,796,937
$ 153,380,465 $14,019,882 $10,127,528 $157,272,819
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Business-type activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings

Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings

Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

June 30, 2008
Acquisitions Disposals

Beginning and and Balance
July 1, 2007 Transfers Transfers June 30, 2008
$ 22,586,978 $ 3,757,302 $ 423,687 $ 25,920,593
7,316,421 4,479,869 997,072 10,799,218
29,903,399 8,237,171 1,420,759 36,719,811
118,540,101 237,051 12,427 118,764,725
10,412,335 - - 10,412,335
21,409,896 219,065 117,576 21,511,385
172,324,398 3,021,131 - 175,345,529
322,686,730 3,477,247 130,003 326,033,974
37,781,455 3,290,287 9,927 41,061,815
2,312,172 433,605 - 2,745,777
10,042,798 1,237,316 72,650 11,207,464
46,875,469 3,828,429 - 50,703,898
97,011,894 8,789,637 82,577 105,718,954
225,674,836 (5,312,390) 47,426 220,315,020
$ 255,578,235 $ 2,924,781 $ 1,468,185 $257,034,831

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Governmental activities:
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development
General government
Internal service funds

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Parking
Wastewater treatment
Water
Sanitation
Housing authority
Nonmajor enterprise

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities
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As of June 30, 2008, $1,505,553 in capital assets were idle due to flooding of the Iowa River. These assets will
either be repaired or replaced. The City expects to receive funds from Federal Emergency Management Association,
the State of lowa, and insurance to reduce the City’s recovery expenses. No impairment loss has been recorded as

the City cannot reasonably estimate insurance recoveries and repair and\or replacement costs.

6. Bonded and Other Long-term Debt

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows:

Due Within
July 1, 2007 Issues Retirements June 30, 2008 One Year
Governmental activities:

General obligation bonds $ 80,350,630 $ 9,150,000 $ 7,323,235 $ 82,177,395 $ 8,333,235

Plus: Unamortized
Premium (discount) 91,264 15,681 15,808 91,137 15,808
Total general obligation bonds 80,441,894 9,165,681 7,339,043 82,268,532 8,349,043
Note payable 211,000 - - 211,000 -
Employee vested benefits 1,964,342 1,027,938 1,029,990 1,962,290 1,049,665
$ 82,617,236 $10,193,619 $ 8,369,033 $ 84,441,822 $ 9,398,708

Business-type activities:

General obligation bonds $ 5,489,370 $ - $ 576,765 $ 4,912,605 $ 571,765

Less: Unamortized
discounts 30,737 - 3,842 26,895 3,842
Total general obligation bonds 5,458,633 - 572,923 4,885,710 567,923
Revenue bonds 100,760,000 - 5,415,000 95,345,000 5,625,000

Less: Unamortized
Discounts 867,663 - 72,049 795,614 72,049
Total revenue bonds 99,892,337 - 5,342,951 94,549,386 5,552,951
Landfill closure/post-closure 9,516,611 581,080 - 10,097,691 -
Employee vested benefits 464,030 274,149 243,810 494,369 265,936
$115,331,611 $ 855,229 $ 6,159,684 $110,027,156 $ 6,386,810

A note payable was issued to Greater lowa City Housing Fellowship for the purchase of an 11 unit
apartment building for low income and disabled housing in the Peninsula Neighborhood. The terms of
the loan are 1%, interest only payments for twenty years with a final balloon payment of $211,000 due on
August 1, 2025.
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For the governmental activities, employee vested benefits are generally liquidated by the General Fund
and Community Development Block Grant Fund.

General Obligation Bonds

Various issues of general obligation bonds totaling $87,090,000 are outstanding as of June 30, 2008. The
bonds have interest rates ranging from 2.5% to 5.6% and mature in varying annual amounts ranging from
$85,000 to $2,195,000 per issue, with the final maturities due in the year ending June 30, 2023. Interest
and principal payments on all general obligation bonds, except tax abated portions recorded in the
enterprise funds, are accounted for through the Debt Service Fund.

Portions of several general obligation bond issues have been used to acquire or expand the enterprise fund
facilities. In some instances, revenue generated by the enterprise funds is used to pay the general long-
term debt principal and interest. The liability for those bonds that are expected to be paid by enterprise
funds is included in those funds.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2009 8,333,235 3,551,333 571,765 181,493
2010 8,504,538 3,246,243 590,462 161,826
2011 8,800,840 2,901,964 604,160 140,850
2012 9,117,143 2,540,242 622,857 119,247
2013 8,143,445 2,158,552 641,555 96,592
2014-2018 32,283,194 5,792,166 1,881,806 152,620
2019-2023 6,995,000 897,513 - -
Total $ 82,177,395 $ 21,088,013 $ 4,912,605 $ 852,628

Revenue Bonds

As of June 30, 2008, the following unmatured revenue bond issues are outstanding:

Wastewater
Parking Treatment Water
Original issue amount $ 11,350,000 $ 83,935,000 $ 30,700,000
Interest rates 5.9% to 6.0% 3.3% to 5.8% 2.0% to 5.6%
Annual maturities $ 370,000t0 $ 315,000t0 $ 290,000 to
$ 895,000 $ 3,010,000 $ 910,000
Amount outstanding $ 10,035,000 $ 60,475,000 $ 24,835,000
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Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending Business-type Activities
June 30 Principal Interest
2009 5,625,000 4,668,765
2010 5,875,000 4,413,216
2011 6,195,000 4,139,939
2012 6,505,000 3,851,052
2013 6,640,000 3,548,294
2014-2018 27,390,000 13,650,896
2019-2023 29,185,000 5,834,673
2024-2028 7,930,000 593,413

$ 95,345,000

$ 40,700,248

The revenue bond ordinances required that wastewater treatment, parking system, and water revenues be
set aside into separate and special accounts as they are received. The use and the amounts to be included

in the accounts are as follows:

Account

(a) Revenue Bond and Interest Amount sufficient to pay current bond and interest maturities.

Sinking Reserve

(b) Revenue Debt Service Reserve Amount required to be deposited in the Revenue Bond and
Interest Reserve until the reserve fund equals: Parking Revenue
and Water Revenue bonds — maximum debt service due on the
bonds in any succeeding fiscal year. Wastewater Revenue
bonds — 125% of the average principal and interest payments

over the life of all the Wastewater Revenue bonds.

(c) Improvement Reserve $20,000 per month until the reserve balance equals or exceeds
$2,000,000 for Wastewater Revenue bonds, $5,000 per month
until the reserve balance equals or exceeds $300,000 for Parking
Revenue bonds and $450,000 for Water Revenue bonds, with no
further deposits once the minimum balance is reached. If the
reserve falls below the required minimum, monthly transfers in

the aforementioned amounts will resume.
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General obligation and revenue bonds payable at June 30, 2008, are comprised of the following issues:

General Obligation Bonds:
Multi-Purpose
Multi-Purpose
Multi-Purpose
Multi-Purpose
Multi-Purpose and Library
Construction
Refunded Multi-Purpose (1)
Multi-Purpose
Taxable-Urban Renewal
Multi-Purpose
Multi-Purpose
Multi-Purpose
Refunded Water
Construction (2)
Multi-Purpose
Multi-Purpose

Total General Obligation Bonds

Revenue Bonds:

Parking Bonds

Wastewater Treatment
Bonds

Wastewater Treatment
Bonds

Wastewater Treatment
Bonds

Wastewater Treatment
Bonds

Wastewater Treatment
Bonds

Refunded Wastewater
Treatment Bonds (3)

Water Bonds

Water Bonds

Water Bonds

Total Revenue Bonds

Date of Amount Interest Final Outstanding

Issue Issued Rates Maturity June 30, 2008
Apr. 1998 $ 8,500,000 4.35-475 6/13 $ 2,750,000
Mar. 1999 9,000,000 4.125-4.75 6/18 4,750,000
Jul. 2000 14,310,000 50-55 6/18 9,580,000
Jun. 2001 11,500,000 4.0-49 6/16 6,785,000
May 2002 29,100,000 35-50 6/21 18,835,000
Oct. 2002 10,600,000 2.5-4.0 6/15 2,825,000
Nov. 2003 5,570,000 2.5-3.6 6/14 3,300,000
Mar. 2004 7,305,000 40-54 6/23 6,990,000
Mar. 2005 7,020,000 3.0-4.0 6/15 5,175,000
Jun. 2006 6,265,000 3.625-4.0 6/16 5,250,000
Jun. 2006 1,000,000 55-5.6 6/16 850,000
Sep. 2006 3,350,000 3.6-3.75 6/17 2,725,000
May 2007 8,870,000 3.75 6/17 8,125,000
June 2008 9,150,000 3.25-3.75 6/18 9,150,000
$ 87,090,000

Date of Amount Interest Final Outstanding

Issue Issued Rates Maturity June 30, 2008
Dec. 1999 § 11,350,000 5.875-6.0 7/24 $ 10,035,000
Mar. 1996 18,300,000 5.0-5.75 7/21 13,300,000
May 1997 10,600,000 5.15-55 7/22 7,950,000
Jan. 1999 7,000,000 4.25-4.875 7/19 4,875,000
Oct. 2000 12,000,000 5.125-5.5 7/25 9,915,000
Dec. 2001 10,250,000 45-5.0 7/20 10,250,000
Apr. 2002 25,785,000 3.25-4.1 7/12 14,185,000
May 1999 9,200,000 4.75-5.0 7/24 7,335,000
Dec. 2000 13,000,000 5.0-5.625 7/25 10,645,000
Oct. 2002 8,500,000 2.0-4.65 7/22 6,855,000
95,345,000
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(1) This bond issue has a portion of the general obligation bonds payable shown as a liability on the
balance sheet of the Water Fund.

(2) This bond issue has the general obligation bonds payable shown as a liability on the balance sheet of
the Water Fund. Also, this bond issue refunds the November 1997 Water Construction General
Obligation Bonds.

(3) This bond issue refunds the January 1993 Wastewater Revenue Bonds.

Conduit Debt Obligations

From time to time, the City has issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds and Facility Refunding
Revenue Bonds to provide financial assistance to private sector entities for the acquisition, construction,
and renovation of industrial and commercial facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are
collateralized by the property financed and are payable solely from payments received on the underlying
mortgage loans. All payments on the bonds are made by the private sector entities directly to a bond
trustee, who is a third party financial institution, and in turn, disburses the payment to the respective bond
holders. Neither the City, the State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying
financial statements.

As of June 30, 2008, there were two series of Industrial Development Revenue Bonds and Facility
Refunding Revenue Bonds outstanding, with an aggregate principal amount payable of $40,522,172.

Debt Legal Compliance
Legal Debt Margin:

As of June 30, 2008, the general obligation debt issued by the City did not exceed its legal debt margin
computed as follows:

Assessed valuation:

Real property $ 3,888,746,352
Utilities 65,034,635
Total valuation $ 3.,953,780,987
Debt limit, 5% of total assessed valuation $ 197,689,049
Debt applicable to debt limit:
General obligation bonds 87.090,000
Legal debt margin $§ 110,599,049
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7. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
workplace accidents, errors and omissions; and natural disasters. During fiscal year 1988 the City
established the Loss Reserve Fund, an internal service fund, to account for and finance its uninsured risks
of loss. During the year ended June 30, 2008 the City purchased property, liability, and workers’
compensation insurance under the program that provides for a $100,000 self-insured retention per
occurrence on property losses, a $500,000 self-insured retention per occurrence on liability, and a
$400,000 self-insured retention on workers’ compensation losses. The liability insurance provides
coverage for claims in excess of the aforementioned self-insured retention up to a maximum of
$21,000,000 annual aggregate of losses paid. The operating funds pay annual premiums to the Loss
Reserve Fund. Accumulated monies in the Loss Reserve Fund are available to cover the self-insured
retention amounts and any uninsured losses. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage
in any of the past ten fiscal years.

The Housing Authority Fund is insured under a separate policy with the Assisted Housing Risk
Management Association. The remaining funds participate in the Loss Reserve Fund. The funds make
payments to the Loss Reserve Fund based on actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior- and
current-year claims and to establish a reserve for catastrophic losses. The Fund’s accrued liabilities
balance includes a claims liability at June 30, 2008 based on the requirements of GASB Statement No.
10, as amended, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance
of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the
financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Changes in the Loss Reserve
Fund’s claims liability amount for property, liability, and workers’ compensation for the years ended
June 30, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:
Current-Year

Beginning-of- Claims and Balance at
Fiscal-Year Changes in Claim Fiscal
Liability Estimates Payments Year-End
2006 — 2007 $ 1,439,000 $ 233,000 $ 435,000 $ 1,237,000
2007 — 2008 1,237,000 876,000 813,000 1,300,000

Also, the City is partially self-insured, through stop-loss insurance, for employee health care coverage,
which is available to all of its permanent employees. This insurance provides stop-loss coverage for
claims in excess of $100,000 per employee with an aggregate stop-loss of $6,873,011. The operating
funds are charged premiums by the Loss Reserve Fund. The City reimburses a health insurance provider
for actual medical costs incurred, plus a claims processing fee. Changes in the Loss Reserve Fund’s
claims liability amount for health care coverage for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 are as
follows:

Current-Year

Beginning-of- Claims and Balance at
Fiscal-Year Changes in Claim Fiscal
Liability Estimates Payments Year-End
2006 — 2007 $ 445,000 $ 6,484,000 $ 6,340,000 $ 589,000
2007 - 2008 589,000 5,901,000 5,802,000 688,000
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8. Contractual Commitments and Contingencies

The total outstanding contractual commitments as of June 30, 2008 are as follows:

Fund Project Amount
Bridge, Street and Traffic Paving and bridge construction, $ 5,409,385
Control Construction engineering design and consulting

Other Construction Public Works construction, Culture & Recreation

construction, and fire station construction 2,537,216

Water Water main construction 33,475

Sanitation Landfill consulting 346,151

Airport Runway extension consulting, grading and paving 442,708

Cable TV Refranchising consulting 44,290

§ 8,813,225

9. Contingent Liabilities
Litigation

The City is a defendant in a number of lawsuits arising principally from claims against the City for
alleged improper actions by City employees, with such lawsuits typically involving claims of improper
police action, unlawful taking of property by zoning, negligence, appeals of condemnations, and
discrimination. Total damages claimed are substantial; however, it has been the City’s experience that
such actions are settled for amounts substantially less than claimed amounts. The City’s management
estimates that the potential claims against the City, not covered by various insurance policies, would not
materially affect the financial condition of the City. The City has the authority to levy additional taxes
(outside the regular limit) to cover uninsured judgments against the City.
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10. Pension and Retirement Systems
Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of Iowa

The City is a participating employer in the Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa
(MFPRSI or the Plan), which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit public police and fire
employees retirement system. All fire fighters and police officers appointed under civil service participate
in the Plan. The Plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits that are established under state
statute. The Plan issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing to Municipal Fire and Police
Retirement System of lowa, 7155 Lake Drive Suite 201, West Des Moines, lowa 50266 or the report may
be obtained from website www.mfprsi.org under the publications link. A member may retire at age 55
with 22 years of employment, and receive full benefits that are equal to 66% of the member’s average
final compensation. Additionally, members retiring with more than 22 years of service will receive an
additional 2% of the member’s average final compensation for up to 8 years of additional service. Other
benefits are also calculated at varying percentages of the average final compensation. Benefits vest after
four years of service.

Member contribution rates are established by state statute. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008,
members contributed 9.35%. The City’s contribution rate is based upon an actuarially determined normal
contribution rate. The normal contribution rate is provided by state statute to be the actuarial liabilities of
the plan less current plan assets, the total then being divided by 1% of the actuarially determined present
value of prospective future compensation of all members, further reduced by member contributions.
Legislatively appropriated contributions from the state to the plan may further reduce the City’s
contribution rate. However, the City’s contribution rate may not be less than 17% of earnable
compensation.

The City was required to contribute 25.48% of earnable compensation of each member in 2008, 27.75%
of earnable compensation in 2007, and 28.21% of earnable compensation in 2006. The contributions paid
by the City for the years ended June 30, 2006, 2007, and 2008, were $1,925,332, $1,954,182, and
$1,910,454 respectively, and was equal to the required contributions for each year.

Iowa Public Employees Retirement System

The City contributes to the lowa Public Employees Retirement System (IPERS), which is a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of Iowa. IPERS provides
retirement and death benefits, which are established by State statute to plan members and beneficiaries.
IPERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing to IPERS, P.O. Box 9117, Des
Moines, lowa 50306-9117.

All employees, except temporary employees of six months or less of employment duration, who do not
participate in any other public retirement system in the state are eligible and must participate in IPERS.
The pension plan provides retirement and death benefits that are established by state statute. Generally, a
member may retire at the age of 65, or any time after age 62 and 20 years or more of service, or when age
plus years of service equals or exceeds 88, and receive unreduced (for age) benefits. Members may also
retire at the age of 55 or more at reduced benefits. Benefits vest after four years of service or after
attaining the age of 55. Full benefits are equal to 60% of the average of the highest three years of covered
wages times years of service divided by 30.
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Plan members are required to contribute 3.90% of their annual covered salary and the City is required to
contribute 6.05% of annual covered payroll. Contribution requirements are established by state statute.
The City’s contributions to IPERS for the years ended June 30, 2006, 2007, and 2008, were $1,329,784,
$1,384,110, and $1,534,552 respectively, and were equal to the required contributions for each year.

11. Post-Employment Benefits

All full-time employees who retire or terminate/resign are offered the following post-employment benefit
options:

Health insurance and dental insurance — The option of continuing with the City’s health insurance
plan at the individual’s expense.

Life insurance — The option of converting the employee’s City-paid policy to an individual policy at
the individual’s expense with the City’s life insurance carrier.

Long-term disability — For employees who terminate/resign and have been on the plan for a minimum
of one year, the option of converting the employee’s City-paid group policy to a personal policy at the
individual’s expense with the City’s long-term disability insurance carrier.

The above options, while at the individual’s own expense, are included within the City’s overall insurance
package. Therefore, a portion of the above coverage is being subsidized by the City and its current
employees. However, the City cannot reasonably estimate the amount of this subsidy and it is being
expensed as incurred by the City.

12. Municipal Utility Systems
Water System

The Water Division is comprised of five parts: Administration, Treatment Plant, Customer Service,
Distribution, and Public Information/Education. There are a total of 32.75 (FTE) employees who work in
the Water Division. This division serves 67,062 people and has over 25,000 customer service
connections. The average daily use for 2008 was 5.48 million gallons per day (MGD). A peak flow of
10.6 MGD was experienced during the summer of 1989.

Water Sources: The primary source of water for the City is the alluvial collector wells along the lowa
River. Four collector wells can provide approximately 11.0 MGD. Additional sources include two
Jordan aquifer wells which can provide 2.0 MGD; four Siluran aquifer wells which can provide 1.0
MGD; a sand pit that can provide 3.0 MGD; a river intake that can provide 3.0 MGD; for a total of
approximately 20 MGD maximum capacity.

Water Treatment Processes: The facilities include one treatment plant (constructed in 2003) located at 80
Stephen Atkins Drive. The plant is a surface water plant design that includes aeration, lime softening
(coagulation/flocculation/sedimentation), and granular activated charcoal filtration processes with
fluoridation and free chlorination. The grade four water facility employs operators that perform over 200
water quality tests per day in-house and collect samples for testing at the University Hygienic Laboratory.
This testing ensures that the water meets all of the Safe Drinking Water Act Standards.
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Distribution System: The water flows through approximately 284 miles of water mains and includes over
25,000 service connections. The distribution piping consists of cast iron, ductile and PVS main that
ranges in size from 2” to 30”. The treatment plant site has effective water storage capacity of 1.75 million
gallons of water; in addition there are four remote ground storage reservoirs (with pumping stations) that
add up to remote effective storage capacity of 6.0 million gallons of water. The water system also
provides for fire protection with approximately 3,100 hydrants located throughout the community.

Billing and Collections: Customers are billed monthly on a combined utility statement which includes
charges for sewer, water, solid waste, and curbside recycling. Under present City policy and City
ordinances, utility bills are due when received but contain a delinquency date which provides 15 days for
payment. If payment is not made in full within 22 days, a notice is mailed which allows 25 calendar days
before service is disconnected. The City’s bad debt write-offs have been less than 0.5% of gross revenues
for the past three years.

Rates:
The following rates and charges were effective July 1, 2007.

Water Service Charge Minimums (includes up to the first 100 cubic feet (c.f.))

Meter Size Meter Size
(Inches) Charge (Inches) Charge
5/8” $6.41 27 $22.14
3/4” 7.00 3” 4091
17 8.26 4” 71.37
11/2” 16.47 6” 143.61
Monthly Usage in excess of 100 cubic feet (c.f.)
101 - 3,000 $2.99 per 100 c.f.
3,001 and over $2.15 per 100 c.f.

Single Purpose Meter Charges
First 100 (c.f) Minimum Monthly Charge
Usage in excess of 100 cubic feet (c.f.) $2.99 per 100 c.f.

Changes in water rates over the last ten fiscal years.

1999 15%
2000 10%
2001 0%
2002 0%
2003 - 5%
2004 - 5%
2005 0%
2006 0%
2007 - 5%
2008 0%
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Financial Information: The following table summarizes the results of operations for the Water System for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006.

WATER SYSTEM
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Last Three Fiscal Years
(amounts expressed in thousands)

2008 2007 2006
Operating Revenues:
Charges for services $ 8,195 $ 8,240 $ 9,012
Miscellaneous 134 51 165
Total operating revenues 8,329 8,291 9,177
Operating Expenses:
Personal services 2,160 2,091 2,024
Commodities 1,348 1,463 1,908
Services and charges 1,840 1,802 1,765
5,348 5,356 5,697
Depreciation 2,065 2,024 1,985
Total operating expenses 7,413 7,380 7,682
Operating income 916 911 1,495
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
(Loss) on disposal of capital assets 2) - (25)
Interest income 931 929 741
Interest expense (1,426) (1,549) (1,607)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (497) (620) (891)
Income before capital contributions
and transfers 419 291 604
Capital contributions 314 845 606
Transfers in 689 3,045 -
Transfers out (820) (237) (467)
Change in net assets 602 3,944 743
Net Assets, Beginning 60,004 56,060 55,317
Net Assets, Ending $ 60,606 $ 60,004 $ 56,060
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The following table summarizes the budget and actual figures for the Water System for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2008 and the budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 on a cash basis.

WATER SYSTEM
BUDGET AND ACTUALS (CASH BASIS)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

FY09
Actual Budget Percentage Budget

Charges for services $ 8,310 $ 8,678 95.76% $ 8425
Interest Income 1,013 614 164.98% 1,025
Miscellaneous 129 89 144.94% 49

Total Receipts 9,452 9,381 100.76% 9,499
Personal services 2,298 2,242 102.50% 2,371
Commodities 549 640 85.78% 768
Services and charges 1,816 2,214 82.02% 2,539
Capital Outlay 1,819 3,115 58.39% 3,507
Transfer to Capital Project Funds 1,917 3,844 49.87% 3,071
Operating Subsidy 15 15 100.00% 17
Debt Service Payments 2,981 2,981 100.00% 2,959

Total Disbursements $ 11,395 $ 15,051 75.71% $ 15232

Sewer System

The City of lowa City operates a municipal Sewer Utility System consisting of approximately 300 miles
of sanitary sewers, 14 lift stations, and 2 treatment plants. The North Plant was constructed in 1935 and
the South Plant was completed in 1990 and upgraded in 2002. The connecting of the North and South
Plants was completed in 1998. The City has the capability to divert treatment to the South Plant and
control all operations remotely through computer systems. The combined wastewater treatment system is
at two-thirds of the design capacity. Both plants are in compliance with federal clean water standards.

Billing and Collections: Customers are billed monthly on a combined utility statement which includes
charges for sewer, water, solid waste, and curbside recycling. Under present City policy and City
ordinances, utility bills are due when received but contain a delinquency date which provides 15 days for
payment. If payment is not made in full within 22 days, a notice is mailed which allows 25 calendar days
before service is disconnected. The City’s bad debt write-offs have been less than 0.5% of gross revenues
for the past three years.
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Rates:
The following rates and charges were effective July 1, 2007.

Sewer Service Charge Minimum (includes up to the first 100 cubic feet (c.f.))  $7.76
Monthly Usage in excess of 100 cubic feet (c.f.) $3.80

A rate increase of 5% was approved by the City Council and the following rates and charges went into
effect July 1, 2008.

Sewer Service Charge Minimum (includes up to the first 100 cubic feet (c.f.))  $8.15
Monthly Usage in excess of 100 cubic feet (c.f.) $3.99

Changes in sewer rates over the last ten fiscal years.

1999 0%
2000 20%
2001 5%
2002 5%
2003 0%
2004 0%
2005 0%
2006 0%
2007 8%
2008 0%
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Financial Information: The following table summarizes the results of operations for the Sewer System for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006.

SEWER SYSTEM
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Last Three Fiscal Years
(amounts expressed in thousands)

2008 2007 2006
Operating Revenues:
Charges for services $ 12,318 $ 12,535 $ 12,145
Miscellaneous 75 53 40
Total operating revenues 12,393 12,588 12,185
Operating Expenses:
Personal services 1,651 1,497 1,565
Commodities 606 554 533
Services and charges 2,324 2,185 2,162
4,581 4,236 4,260
Depreciation 4,181 4,209 4,037
Total operating expenses 8,762 8,445 8,297
Operating income (loss) 3,631 4,143 3,888
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 4) - 17
Operating grants - 1 -
Interest income 944 1,119 596
Interest expense (3,041) (3,213) (3,375)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (2,102) (2,093) (2,762)
Income before capital contributions
and transfers 1,529 2,050 1,126
Capital contributions 577 1,539 773
Transfers in 30 928 60
Transfers out (69) 97) (222)
Change in net assets 2,067 4,420 1,737
Net Assets, Beginning 71,052 66,632 64,895
Net Assets, Ending $ 73,119 $ 71,052 $ 66,632
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The following table summarizes the budget and actual figures for the Sewer System for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2008 and the budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 on a cash basis.

SEWER SYSTEM
BUDGET AND ACTUALS (CASH BASIS)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

FY09

Actual Budget Percentage Budget
Charges for services $ 12,512 $ 12,866 97.25% $ 13,575
Interest Income 672 490 137.14% 915

Miscellaneous 89 5 1780.00% -
Total Receipts 13,273 13,361 99.34% 14,490
Personal services $ 1,646 $ 1,786 92.16% $ 1,802
Commodities 497 508 97.83% 473
Services and charges 2,328 2,434 95.65% 2,375
Capital Outlay 172 762 22.57% 1,218
Transfer to Capital Project Funds 54 460 11.74% 1,316
Operating Subsidy 15 15 100.00% 17
Debt Service Payments 7,247 7,247 100.00% 7,251
Total Disbursements $ 11,959 $ 13212 90.52% $ 14452

13. Landfill Closure and Post-closure Care Costs

In August 1993, the GASB issued Statement No. 18, Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landyfill
Closure and Post-closure Care Costs (the Statement). Under these rules, in addition to operating
expenses related to current activities of the landfill, an expense provision and related liability are being
recognized based on the future closure and post-closure care costs that will be incurred near or after the
date the landfill no longer accepts waste. The recognition of these landfill closure and post-closure care
costs is based on the amount of the landfill used during the year.

The estimated liability for landfill closure and post-closure care costs as of June 30, 2008, is
approximately $10,097,690, which is based on 78.5% usage (filled) of the landfill and is included in
accrued liabilities within the Sanitation Fund. It is estimated that an additional amount of approximately
$4,685,300 will be recognized as closure and post-closure care expenses between the date of the balance
sheet and the date the landfill is expected to be filled to capacity by the year ended June 30, 2019. The
estimated total current cost of the landfill closure and post-closure care costs at June 30, 2008, was
determined by engineers from Howard R. Green Company and approximated $12,863,300. It is based on
the amount that would be paid if all equipment, facilities, and services required to close, monitor, and
maintain the landfill were acquired as of June 30, 2008. These amounts are based on an estimated post-
closure care and monitoring period of 30 years, consistent with current State Department of Natural
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Resources regulations. However, the actual cost of closure and post-closure care may be higher due to
inflation, changes in technology, or changes in landfill laws and regulations.

The City is required by federal and state laws and regulations to provide some form of financial assurance
to finance closure and post-closure care. The City will meet its financial assurance obligations through the
issuance of general obligation bonds. As of June 30, 2008, the Sanitation Fund had $11,184,101 in related
equity in pooled cash and investments, at fair value designated for satisfaction of post-closure costs. The
City estimates that these cash reserves will only provide a fraction of the dollars needed to close and
monitor the landfill. The remaining portion of post-closure care costs, anticipated future inflation costs
and additional costs that might arise from changes in post-closure requirements (due to changes in
technology or more rigorous environmental regulations, for example) may need to be covered by charges
to future landfill users as well as City taxpayers.

14. Subsequent events

On October 15, 2008 the City of Iowa City received and awarded capital loan notes for General
Obligation Refunding Capital Loan Notes, Series 2008B in the amount of $17,005,000. The notes were
issued to current refund on October 15, 2008, $2,750,000 of the City’s outstanding General Obligation
Bonds, Series 1998, dated April 1, 1998, $4,750,000 of the City’s outstanding General Obligation Bonds,
Series 1999, dated March 15, 1999, and $9,580,000 of the City’s outstanding General Obligation Bonds,
Series 2000, dated July 1, 2000, for a total of $17,080,000.

Also, on October 15, 2008 the City of lowa City received and awarded capital loan notes for Sewer
Revenue Refunding Capital Loan Notes, Series 2008C in the amount of $24,280,000. The notes were
issued to current refund on October 15, 2008, $12,650,000 of the City’s outstanding Sewer Revenue
Bonds, Series 1996, dated March 15, 1996, $7,600,000 of the City’s outstanding Sewer Revenue Bonds,
Series 1997, dated June 1, 1997, and $4,560,000 of the City’s outstanding Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series
1999, dated February 1, 1999, for a total of $24,810,000.

In addition, on October 15, 2008 the City of lowa City received and awarded capital loan notes for Water
Revenue Refunding Capital Loan Notes, Series 2008D in the amount of $7,115,000. The notes were
issued to current refund on October 15, 2008, $7,045,000 of the City’s outstanding Water Revenue
Bonds, Series 1999, dated May 1, 1999.

15. New Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Standards

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued seven statements not yet
implemented by the City. The statements, which might impact the City are as follows:

Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other
than Pensions issued June 2004, will be effective for the City for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.
This statement establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of (OPEB)
expense/expenditures and related liabilities (assets), note disclosures and, if applicable, required
supplementary information (RSI) in the financial reports of state and local governmental employers.
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Statement No. 47, Accounting for Termination Benefits issued June 2005, establishes accounting
standards for termination benefits. For termination benefits provided through an existing defined benefit
OPEB plan, the provisions of this Statement should be implemented simultaneously with the
requirements of Statement 45.

Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations issued
November 2006, will be effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009. This statement establishes
standards for accounting and financial reporting for obligations to address the current or potential
detrimental effects of existing pollution.

Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets, issued June 2007, will be
effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010. This statement requires that all intangible assets not
specifically excluded by its scope be classified as capital assets.

Statement No. 52, Land and Other Real Estate Held as Investments by Endowments, issued November
2007, will be effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009. This statement establishes consistent
standards for the reporting of land and other real estate held as investments by essentially similar entities.

Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, issued June 2008, will
be effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010. This statement addresses the recognition,
measurement, and disclosure of information regarding derivative instruments entered into by state and
local governments.

The City’s management has not yet determined the effect these statements will have on the City’s
financial statements.
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS AND ENTERPRISE FUNDS

BUDGETARY BASIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

(dollar amounts expressed in thousands)

Revenues:
Property Tax
Tax increment financing taxes
Other city taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures/Expenses:
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development
General government
Debt service
Capital outlay
Business-type
Total expenditures/expenses

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures/expenses

Other financing sources and uses, net

Net change in fund balances

Balances, beginning of year
Balances, end of year

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.

Governmental
Fund Types Enterprise Fund
Actual Budgetary Types Actual Total Actual
Basis Budgetary Basis Budgetary Basis
39,838 § - 39,838
3,050 - 3,050
1,499 - 1,499
1,285 - 1,285
14,763 7,830 22,593
4,435 32,821 37,256
2,536 3,674 6,210
2,471 1,905 4,376
69,877 46,230 116,107
18,026 - 18,026
11,830 - 11,830
10,546 - 10,546
5,322 - 5,322
7,144 - 7,144
11,656 - 11,656
12,762 - 12,762
- 45,707 45,707
77,286 45,707 122,993
(7,409) 523 (6,886)
12,999 (1,689) 11,310
5,590 (1,166) 4,424
41,630 79,405 121,035
47,220 78,239 125,459
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Budgeted Amounts

Final to Actual

Variance -
Positive
Original Final (Negative)
39,974 § 39,974 § (136)
1,798 2,621 429
1,446 1,518 (19)
1,260 1,325 (40)
21,657 33,131 (10,538)
37,721 37,795 (539)
3,939 4,399 1,811
4,567 4,054 322
112,362 124,817 (8,710)
17,504 18,634 608
11,135 13,027 1,197
10,647 11,341 795
6,041 6,636 1,314
7,892 7,700 556
11,718 11,718 62
14,252 32,937 20,175
45,878 55,750 10,043
125,067 157,743 34,750
(12,705) (32,926) 26,040
10,973 10,973 337
(1,732) (21,953) 26,377
97,790 121,035
96,058 99,082

75



CITY OF IOWA CITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
(dollar amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Fund Types

Accrual Modified Accrual
Budget Basis Adjustments Basis
Revenues $ 69,877 $ (1,597) $ 68,280
Expenditures 77,286 (1,436) 75,850
Net (7,409) (161) (7,570)
Other financing sources (uses) 12,999 (1,637) 11,362
Beginning Fund Balances $ 41,630 $ (5,001) $ 36,629
Ending Fund Balances $ 47220 $ (6,799) $ 40,421
Enterprise Fund Types
Accrual Accrual
Budget Basis Adjustments Basis
Revenues $ 46,230 $ 80) $ 46,150
Expenditures 45,707 (4,497) 41,210
Net 523 4,417 4,940
Other financing sources (uses) (1,689) 3,915 2,226
Beginning Fund Balances 79,405 $ 144,249 223,654
Ending Fund Balances $ 78,239 $ 152,581 § 230,820

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.
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City of Iowa City, lowa
Note to Required Supplementary Information - Budgetary Reporting
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

In accordance with Code of Iowa, the City Council annually adopts a budget following required public
notice and hearing which includes all funds, except internal service funds and agency funds. The budget
basis of accounting is cash basis. The annual budget may be amended during the year utilizing similar
statutorily prescribed procedures.

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upon nine major classes of expenditures known as functions,
not by fund or fund type. These nine functions are: public safety, public works, health and social
services, culture and recreation, community and economic development, general government, debt
service, capital outlay and business-type. The legal level control is at the aggregated function level, not at
the fund or fund type level.

During the year, budget amendments increased budgeted expenditures by $32,676,000. The budget
amendments were primarily due to changes in breadth and timing of capital improvement projects.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds account for revenues derived from specific sources that are required to be
accounted for as separate funds. The funds in this category and their purpose are as follows:

Other Shared Revenue and Grants Fund — accounts for revenue from various sources, primarily road
use tax monies from the State of lowa and reimbursable programs funded by federal and state grants.

Economic Development Fund — accounts for revenue and expenditures of economic development
activities.

Johnson County Council of Governments Fund — accounts for the financial activities of the
metropolitan/rural cooperative planning organization.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are utilized to account for all resources used in the acquisition and construction of
capital facilities and other major fixed assets, with the exception of those that are financed by proprietary
fund monies. The fund in this category is as follows:

Bridge, Street, and Traffic Control Construction Fund — accounts for the construction or replacement
of infrastructure fixed assets, such as streets, bridges, dams, sidewalks, and lighting systems.

Other Construction Fund — accounts for the construction or replacement of other City general fixed

assets, such as administrative buildings with various funding sources, including general obligation bonds,
intergovernmental revenues, and contributions.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Special Revenue

Capital Projects

Bridge,
Other Johnson Street, and
Shared County Traffic
Revenue and Economic Council of Control Other
Grants Development Governments Construction Construction Total
Assets
Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 1,970 % 308 $ 49 $ 1,029 $ 2,242 5,598
Receivables:
Property tax - 34 - - - 34
Accounts and unbilled usage - - - 11 5 16
Interest - 30 - - 16 46
Notes 549 - - - - 549
Due from other governments 503 - 41 1,012 146 1,702
Restricted assets:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 5 - - - 12,719 12,724
Total assets $ 3,027 $ 372 $ 90 $ 2,052 $ 15,128 20,669
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 68 $ - 8 3 9 1,986 $ 225 2,282
Contracts payable - - - 635 696 1,331
Accrued liabilities 49 - 17 14 8 88
Advances from other funds 228 - - - - 228
Deferred revenue 556 - - 1,012 120 1,688
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Deposits 5 - - - - 5
Total liabilities 906 - 20 3,647 1,049 5,622
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances - - - - 1,366 1,366
Unreserved
Undesignated 2,121 372 70 (1,595) 12,713 13,681
Total fund balances 2,121 372 70 (1,595) 14,079 15,047
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 3,027 $ 372 $ 9 $ 2,052 $ 15,128 20,669
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Special Revenue Capital Projects
Bridge,
Other Johnson Street, and
Shared County Traffic
Revenue and Economic Council of Control Other
Grants Development Governments Construction Construction Total
Revenues
Property taxes $ - % 3083 $ -8 -3 - $ 3,083
Intergovernmental 5,490 - 283 1,367 206 7,346
Charges for services 40 - - - - 40
Use of money and property 57 118 - - 378 553
Miscellaneous 90 - 34 12 135 271
Total revenues 5,677 3,201 317 1,379 719 11,293
Expenditures
Current:
Public safety - - - - 500 500
Public works 4,688 - - 999 64 5,751
Culture and recreation - - - - 308 308
Community and economic
development 171 1,095 577 - 4 1,847
General government - - - - 58 58
Capital outlay 235 - 3 6,191 3,630 10,059
Total expenditures 5,094 1,095 580 7,190 4,564 18,523
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 583 2,106 (263) (5,811) (3,845) (7,230)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of bonds - - - - 9,150 9,150
Premium on issuance of bonds - - - - 16 16
Transfers in 457 - 260 7,015 3,668 11,400
Transfers out (1,189) (2,788) - - (6,038) (10,015)
Total other financing sources
and (uses) (732) (2,788) 260 7,015 6,796 10,551
Net change in fund balances (149) (682) 3) 1,204 2,951 3,321
Fund Balances, Beginning 2,270 1,054 73 (2,799) 11,128 11,726
Fund Balances, Ending $ 2,121 $ 372§ 70 $ (1,595) $ 14,079  $ 15,047

81



82



NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds account for operations and activities of the City that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to a private business enterprise, and where the costs of providing services to the general public on a
continuing basis are expected to be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or where the City has
decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for
capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. The funds in this
category are as follows:

Airport Fund — accounts for the operation and maintenance of the airport facility.
Stormwater Fund — accounts for the operation and maintenance of the stormwater operation.
Cable Television Fund — accounts for the operation and maintenance of the Broadband Telecommunications

Commission that oversees the franchise agreement with the cable television company, including production and
broadcasting on the government television channels.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Cable
Airport Stormwater Television Total
Assets
Current assets:
Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 9 $ 1,224 § 1,001 § 2,405
Receivables:
Accounts and unbilled usage 4 68 184 256
Interest 13 10 12 35
Due from other governments 632 - - 632
Total current assets 739 1,302 1,287 3,328
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 10 - 107 117
Capital assets:
Land 7,324 2,156 - 9,480
Buildings 3,563 - 741 4,304
Improvements other than buildings 421 - - 421
Machinery and equipment 282 232 89 603
Infrastructure 2,233 32,252 - 34,485
Accumulated depreciation (3,356) (6,363) (245) (9,964)
Construction in progress 4,516 1,650 - 6,166
Total noncurrent assets 14,993 29,927 692 45,612
Total assets 15,732 31,229 1,979 48,940
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 79 48 108 235
Contracts payable 450 - 450
Accrued liabilities 10 7 54 71
Advances from other funds 1,205 - - 1,205
Total current liabilities 1,744 55 162 1,961
Noncurrent liabilities:
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Deposits 10 - - 10
Total noncurrent liabilities 10 - - 10
Total liabilities 1,754 55 162 1,971
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 14,983 29,927 585 45,495
Unrestricted (1,005) 1,247 1,232 1,474
Total net assets $ 13,978  $ 31,174 $ 1,817 $ 46,969
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Cable
Airport Stormwater Television Total
Operating Revenues:
Charges for services $ 258 % 616 $ 814 §$ 1,688
Miscellaneous 14 - 1 15
Total operating revenues 272 616 815 1,703
Operating Expenses:
Personal services 102 145 455 702
Commodities 9 93 13 115
Services and charges 277 163 97 537
388 401 565 1,354
Depreciation 181 671 37 889
Total operating expenses 569 1,072 602 2,243
Operating income (loss) (297) (456) 213 (540)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Gain on disposal of capital assets 1,250 - - 1,250
Interest income 24 49 54 127
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 1,274 49 54 1,377
Income (loss) before capital contributions
and transfers 977 407) 267 837
Capital contributions 1,580 1,305 - 2,885
Transfers in 356 94 - 450
Transfers out (1,521) (75) (153) (1,749)
Change in net assets 1,392 917 114 2,423
Net Assets, Beginning 12,586 30,257 1,703 44,546
Net Assets, Ending $ 13,978  $ 31,174  $ 1,817 $ 46,969
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Cable
Airport Stormwater Television Total
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users $ @ % 615 $ 804 1,412
Payments to suppliers (303) (212) (10) (525)
Payments to employees (102) (144) (445) (691)
Net cash flows from operating activities (412) 259 349 196
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers from other funds 356 - - 356
Transfers to other funds (1,521) (28) (153) (1,702)
Advances from other funds 25 - - 25
Net cash flows from noncapital financing activities (1,140) (28) (153) (1,321)
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing
Activities
Capital grants received 1,580 - - 1,580
Acquisition and construction of property and equipment (1,959) 29) (10) (1,998)
Proceeds from sale of property 1,610 - - 1,610
Net cash flows from capital and related financing
activities 1,231 (29) (10) 1,192
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest on investments 23 53 55 131
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (298) 255 241 198
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning 398 969 957 2,324
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending $ 100 $ 1,224 § 1,198 2,522
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash flows from operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 297) $ (456) $ 213 (540)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash flows from operating activities:
Depreciation expense 181 671 37 889
Changes in:
Receivables:
Accounts and unbilled usage (@] @))] (1 (16)
Due from other governments (275) - - (275)
Accounts payable a7 44 100 127
Accrued liabilities - 1 10 11
Total adjustments (115) 715 136 736
Net cash flows from operating activities $ (412) $ 259 $ 349 196
Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities:
Contributions of capital assets from government and others $ 1,580 $ 1,399 $ - 2,979
Contributions of capital assets to government and others $ - % an $ - 47)
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds account for goods and services provided by one department to other City departments on a
cost-reimbursement basis. The funds in this category are:

Equipment Maintenance Fund — accounts for the provision of maintenance for City vehicles and equipment and
vehicle rental to other City departments from a central vehicle pool.

Central Services Fund — accounts for the support services of photocopying, paper supplies, mail, overnight
shipping, and two-way radios provided to other City departments.

Loss Reserve Fund — accounts for the property, liability, Workers” Compensation and health insurance premiums
and claims activity for City departments, including the self-insured retention portion.

Information Technology Fund — accounts for the accumulation and allocation of costs associated with
telecommunications and data processing, including the operation and replacement of equipment.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Equipment Central Loss Information
Maintenance Services Reserve Technology Total
Assets
Current assets:
Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 5,791 $ 556 $ 7346 $ 2,621 $ 16,314
Receivables:
Accounts and unbilled usage 3 - - - 3
Interest 48 5 67 23 143
Due from other governments 169 - - - 169
Inventories 321 - - - 321
Total current assets 6,332 561 7,413 2,644 16,950
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Land 45 - - - 45
Buildings 578 - - 253 831
Improvements other than buildings 50 - - - 50
Machinery and equipment 11,000 241 8 1,527 12,776
Infrastructure - - - 1,006 1,006
Accumulated depreciation (7,692) (171) @))] (1,418) (9,282)
Construction in progress 120 - - - 120
Total noncurrent assets 4,101 70 7 1,368 5,546
Total assets 10,433 631 7,420 4,012 22,496
Liabilities
Accounts payable 466 6 126 204 802
Accrued liabilities 85 2 1,995 82 2,164
Total liabilities 551 8 2,121 286 2,966
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 4,101 70 7 1,368 5,546
Unrestricted 5,781 553 5,292 2,358 13,984
Total net assets $ 9,882 $ 623 $ 5299 $ 3,726  $ 19,530

88



CITY OF IOWA CITY,IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Equipment Central Loss Information
Maintenance Services Reserve Technology Total
Operating Revenues:
Charges for services $ 4890 % 304 $ 8,581 $ 1,668 $ 15,443
Total operating revenues 4,890 304 8,581 1,668 15,443
Operating Expenses:
Personal services 803 36 166 956 1,961
Commodities 2,485 15 35 408 2,943
Services and charges 386 198 7,713 447 8,744
3,674 249 7,914 1,811 13,648
Depreciation 1,009 15 1 163 1,188
Total operating expenses 4,683 264 7,915 1,974 14,836
Operating income (loss) 207 40 666 (306) 607
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets @))] - - 63 62
Interest income 247 24 317 138 726
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 246 24 317 201 788
Income (loss) before capital contributions
and transfers 453 64 983 (105) 1,395
Capital contributions - - 3 - 3
Transfers in 180 - - 48 228
Transfers out - - (66) - (66)
Change in net assets 633 64 920 (57) 1,560
Net Assets, Beginning 9,249 559 4,379 3,783 17,970
Net Assets, Ending $ 9,882  $ 623 $ 5299 $ 3,726 $ 19,530
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Equipment Central Loss Information
Maintenance Services Reserve Technology Total
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users $ 4786 % 304 $ 8,581 $ 1,668 $ 15,339
Payments to suppliers (2,566) (220) (7,829) (657) (11,272)
Payments to employees (794) (36) (4) (948) (1,782)
Net cash flows from operating activities 1,426 48 748 63 2,285
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing
Activities
Transfers from other funds 180 - - 48 228
Operating transfers to other funds - - (66) - (66)
Net cash flows from noncapital financing
activities 180 - (66) 48 162
Cash Flows From Capital and Related
Financing Activities
Acquisition and construction of property
and equipment (1,207) - (@) (279) (1,491)
Proceeds from sale of property 15 - - 63 78
Net cash flows from capital and related
financing activities (1,192) - (5) (216) (1,413)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest on investments 274 26 348 155 803
Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents 688 74 1,025 50 1,837
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning 5,103 482 6,321 2,571 14,477
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending $ 5791 $ 556 $ 7,346 $ 2,621  $ 16,314
Reconciliation of operating income (loss)
to net cash flows from operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 207 $ 40 3 666 $ (306) $ 607
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
(loss) to net cash flows from operating
activities:
Depreciation expense 1,009 15 1 163 1,188
Changes in:
Receivables:
Accounts and unbilled usage 3) - - - 3)
Due from other governments (101) - - - (101)
Inventories 42) - - - 42)
Accounts payable 347 @) (81) 198 457
Accrued liabilities 9 - 162 8 179
Total adjustments 1,219 8 82 369 1,678
Net cash flows from operating activities $ 1,426  $ 48  $ 748 $ 63 $ 2,285
Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing
Activities:
Contributions of fixed assets from
government and others $ - 8 - 3 3 % - 3
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AGENCY FUNDS

The Agency Funds account for assets held by the City in a trustee or custodial capacity for other entities, such as
individuals, private organizations, or other governmental units. The funds in this category are:

Project Green Fund — accounts for donations that are received to plant and develop yards and lawns, both public
and private, within lowa City.

Library Foundation — accounts for donations that are made to support the library development office.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AGENCY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Project Green

Assets
Equity in pooled cash and investments
Interest receivable

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Due to agency
Total liabilities

Library Foundation

Assets
Equity in pooled cash and investments
Accounts receivable

Liabilities
Accrued liabilities
Total liabilities

Total Agency Funds

Assets
Equity in pooled cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to agency
Total liabilities

Balance Balance

July 1, 2007 Increases Decreases June 30, 2008
197 73 58 $ 212
3 2 3 2
200 75 61 $ 214
2 - 2 3 -
198 75 59 214
200 75 61 $ 214
1 9 6 $ 4

5 - - 5

6 9 6 $ 9

6 9 6 9

6 9 6 $ 9
198 82 64 $ 216
5 - - 5

3 2 3 2
206 84 67 $ 223
2 ; 2 3 -

6 9 6 9
198 75 59 214
206 84 67 $ 223

92



Statistical Section

This part of the City of lowa City’s comprehensive annual financial report represents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the government’s overall

financial health.
Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the government’s financial performance and well-being have changed over
time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the
government’s most significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the government’s current levels of outstanding debt and the
government’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the government’s financial
activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the government’s financial report relates
to the services the government provides and the activities it performs.

Page

95

100

109

120

122

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive

annual financial report for the relevant year. The city implemented GASB 34 in FY03, schedules

presenting government-wide information include information beginning in that year.

93



94



€1€°L9¢ LSE°0SE 7T6°97€ $ 6v1°TIE $ 067867 $ 8I1°78T $
661°VL 8ELYY SI8°€S €LS v 9v6°LYy §9T°0S
190°SY vLOTE v€STT 110°C€ LEITE 61697
€50°81C SYSELT €LS0ST $ $96°6€T $ LO6°LIT $ rE6 V81 $
0T9°LET 901°0€T 910%1T $ S19°90T $ $66°107 $ 9rZT°691 $
0L6°SS S69°€E 886°Ch 08L°0Y 9T9¢ 6€€°€E
0TE1T €68°€T 789°S1 8€0°S1 Te6'rl 0Trve
0€€°091 8ISTLI 9reSST § L6LOST $ LI80ST § LSY'IIL §
€69°6C1 152°021 906TI1 $ yESSOl § S6v'96  $ TL8TIL §
6TT81 €vO°11 LT801 €6L'E 00LT1 92691
IvL°€T I81°8 7589 €L691 SOL'LI 66T
€TLLY LTO101 LTTS6  $ 89LV8  $ 060°L9 $ LYY'EL  $
800C L00T 900¢ S00¢ ¥00¢ £00¢

Ie9 X [BOSI]

(spuesnoyj ur passaidxe syunowe)

(Sununoosde Jo SIseq [BMIOOY)
SIBd X [BOSI] XIS ISe]

ININOJINOD A4 SLASSY LAN

VAOI ‘ALID VAAOI 40 ALID

$19SSE Jou JuaWuIdA03 Arewnid (8107,

pajoLnsaIun
PaIoLNSAY

1Qop poje[al JO JaU ‘sjasse [eyided ur pasoAu]
JUOWIUISA0S ATewLig

SJoSSE Jou sojIAnOE adA-ssoursnq €10 ],

pajoLnsaIun
paoIsay

1Q9p PAIe[aI JO 19U ‘s3asse [e3rded Ul pajsaAu]
sanianoe adAj-ssoursng

S19SSE JU SANIAIIOR [BJUSWUISAOS [810 ],

paloLnsaun
pasay

1Q9p peje[al JO Jou ‘sjasse [eyideo ur paysoau]
SONIAIOR [BJUSUILIOAOD)

Yo
[o)]



(ponunuod)

v18 9TL 81L 80L €L9 86¢ UOISIAS[O T, A[qe)
919 (44} L6S c6S 01 - I91eMULIO)S
86T 4% ¥9¢C 0T¢ €1C 081 yodiry
€L9y YOLY 9¢6°¢ SHO'y 110y 9€9°¢ Sunyred
6b1 43 891 181 61¢ X4 Kuoyny Sursnoy
€68°L 0L €eI’L PST°L I11°L 1€5°9 uonejueg
S61°8 ove's 7106 709°8 ¥91°6 LLI6 1R
81€CI SesTl SY1°Cl SY1°Cl 085°CI St'Tl 101BMIISB A\

:SOOIAIOS 10J SoSIeyD)
:saniAnoe adKj-ssoursng

LELTTS 96018 780°€1S 01¥91$ 0St'v1$ 8YS11S 5ONUSASI WeIF01d SANIANOR [EJUSLUUIIA0ST [BI0],
LYL] €8Ty 6V8°€ 6L9°L 8619 S0TT suonnqLyuod pue sjyueis [eyder)
119°€ SIT'e LE6T T6S°T 0S1°C $96°C suonnqLyuoo pue syueid Sunerodo
€€9°1 695°1 96S°1 8yl 8Tl 91+l JUSWIUIOAOT [210USD)

- - - - - 61 udwdo[oASp OIWOU0ID PuE AJUNWWO))
089 CIL LOL €59 0€9 SPI°l Uonealdal pue aImnzy
LYO1 6TC°1 7901 9L0°1 900°1 8IT°1 SHIOM Olqnd
610°¢ $ 880°¢ $ 1L6C $ 876°C $ 8€0°¢ $ LOST $ Ayages onqng

S901AISS 10J s9S1eyD)
'SON)IAIIOR [BJUSUIUIOAOD)
sonuoAdy weiold

LEV'TOT $  LT8L6 $ 18€°L6  §  TO8S6 $§  LTE6S $  08L'€E8 $ sosuadxa juouruiood Arewrtid [ejo,

96'0F 90Z'0v 05S6°6€ 26801 16Z°6€ 0TT'S¢ sosuadxa sonranoe odA)-ssoursng [elo,

865 STs 9LS L09 6v¢ L89 UOISIA9[ I, 2]qBD
TLOT [439 L18 454! [43% IoremuiIolg
09¢ 81y Cls 0¢s SIS 1§34 Hodiry
€16°¢ €0v'y ¥88°¢ 686°¢ 868°C ¥Sse Sunyjreq
YLE'L 7889 9Z0°L 99¥°L 61T°L 6159 Kuoyimy Suisnoy
8989 7899 101°9 1€0°9 €01°9 780y uonejues
¥08°8 €788 vTE6 €1€'8 110°8 198°L Iore
LSLTT LESTT O1LTT v1zTl YreTl 980°CI 191eM3ISB M

:saniAnjoe adAj-ssoursng

16709 129°LS 1EVLS 012'sS 9€0°0S 09S°8¥ 595Uadx SANIANDL [EJUSUILISA0T [EJ0],

LISE 65¥°¢ 0 T09°¢ ovy'e 799°¢ S0IAISS 192
€EV'L 8ST'L 7689 0059 LTS9 1629 JUSLITLISAOS [B10USD)
0S8°l 0897 ¥9T°9 0969 08T €€1°e udWAdO[2AIP OIOUOO PUE AJUNWWO))
09%¥°€1 0L6°T1 8SH'11 IveTl 150°C1 1€1°01 Uonealdal pue aImnsy
LTLel 095°€l €TLTl 1es1l €Trol 6€S°11 SHIOM Olqnd
vos‘oz $ 76991 $ 06991 $ 98T'S1 $ S10°GI $ rr8El $ Kyegeg d11qnd

'SONITAT)OR [BJUSUIUIIAOD)
sasuadxg
800C L00T 900T S00T 00T £00T

Ted A [e9SI]
(spuesnoy) ur passordxa sjunowe)

(Sununoosde Jo siseq [eNIdOY)
SIe0 X [eOSI] XIS Ise]

SLASSY LAN NI SHONVHD

VAOI ‘ALID VAAOI A0 ALID

96



95691 S SEV'ET S ELLYI S 6SL°€E1 S S0L9T $ 10T°€1 $ juewiuioA0s Arewtid [ej0],
YISL 06091 10t°L 0€Y 1L1°8 YIEL sauanoe adA1-ssoursng
w6 $ SPEL $ TLEL $  LSH6 $  peES $ 188G $ 53)IATIOR [BIUSWUIIAOD)
510SSY 1N Ul 98uey)
10L°C9 $ 1€L°09 $ ¥99°vS $ S01°0S $ S6T'8Y $ 690ty $ juswuIeAos Arewtid [ejo],
S0Sy 198°6 £76°C 818°1 SLI'Y 0L1°T son1ANoE odA)-ssoursng [e10],
(88t) 1Z€'S (802) (S+9) ov8°l (1) SIoJsuel],
14974 1343 16¢€ 81¥ gee 66 SNOUE[[OISTIA
09T°1 16S S81 ¥0€ 600°T 913 $)9sS® JO d[eS UO uren
6LT°¢ 909°¢ SLST 1LLT 166 S0E‘1 SjuSUSIAUT UO sFururey
‘SANUIAJI [eIUaD)
:sonIAnoR 9dA)-ssoursng
961°8S 0L8°0S 12L°1S LST'SY 0Cl'vy 668°TH 3911AIOR [RIUSWILIIA0S [RI0],
88% (1ze's) 80T Sv9 (0v8°1) vhrl SIojsuRI],
- 18¢ 001 S6 S9 (9zLD) 3)3SSE JO 9[es Uo (SSO[) uren
60S°€ 959°¢ (4447 766°¢ 9pL'E vLI'E SNOJUB[[ISTA
Te6°E SY0‘y 8L9°C 9LS‘1 950°1 LOTT sjusUIISaAUL Uo sSururey
SeEv'l 4 ove'1 1s€1 609°1 66€°1 soxe} Y10
(4349 S0g‘S €0€°S 69T°S 11€°6 12459 Xe} osn peoy
00t €y $ [{3A8% $ OLL'LE $ LTE'SE $ €L1VE $ LSTTE $ soxey Auadoig
'SANUIAI [BIUID)
'SAMIANIR [BIUSWIUIIAOL)
19SSV JON Ul sa3uey)) J9YI0) PUB SONUIADY [BISUID)
(SrL'sy) ¢ 96TL) & (168°66) §  (Op€9e) §  (065'19) $§  (898%0¢) § »suadxa 1ou JuswtIvA03 Arewid [e10]
600°¢ 62C°9 8SHY ¥SPT 966°¢ Y19 san1Anoe adK)-ssaursng
(psL'8y) $  (ses'er)  § (6vevy) ¢ (0088E) ¢ (98s'se) §  (TI0°LE) $ SOIATIOR [PJUSWWIOAOD
30nu2AYY / (asuadxy) 10N
T69°SS $ 1€5°09 $ 06%°LS $ 9S¥°6S $ LEL'LS $ T16°Cs $ sonuAdI JuWIdA0F Areurtid [e10],
SS6°El SEV oy 80V v 910°c L8T'EY Y€ 1Y sonuaAdl weidoid soniAnoe adA)-ssoursng [e)0 L,
- I - - - - I0JBMI)SBAN :SUONNQLIUOD pue syueld SunerodQ
- 9 € - 6 10¢ uonelIuES SUONNQLIUOd pue syueld Junerodo
- - - - - 9¢ yodiry :suonnqgruod pue syueis SunerodQ
- - - - - 1€1 I0JeA\ suonngnuod pue syuers SunerodQ
1829 So1°L yIv'L T10°L 0569 1679 fQuoyny Suisnoy :suonnqiuod pue sjueld Junerndo
8 - - - - - Suryred :suonnquyuod pue syued [ende)
L1 - - - - - Quoyny Suisnoy :suonnquiuod pue sjueld [ende)
¢ 1ST°1 89 SSL LIL - 10JEMWIO)S SuONNQLIuOod pue syueis [eyde)
08S°1 1€T°1 STI‘l €8¢ 911 - podiry :suonnquyuod pue sjueid [ende)
- - id - - - uonelIuES SuonnqrLIuos pue syuelsd [eyde)
vig St8 909 88¢ (454 0r9 oJeA\ SUONNAIUOO pue sjueid [ende)
LLS 6€S°1 €LL 19L 896 LLOT DIEMI)SBAY SUOHNQLIIUOD pue sjueld [eyde)
800C L00T 900T §00T 00T £00T

Ted A [e9SI]

(spuesnoy) ur passaidxo syunowre)

(Sununoooe Jo siseq [eNIOOY)

SIBO X BOST QAL ISe]

(ponunuod) SLASSV LAN NI SAONVHD

VMOI ‘ALID VAAOI A0 ALID



L8Y'ST § €eS'LT  § e8yl $ 0€9°LT § 898°1C  § 0S8°0C
SIT°11 v68°L €60°L €v1’9 788°¢ LYO°1
1LST 99¢°¢ (44743 TTT9 6LE°6 618°¢
169°8 68T STLT L90°€ 0€6°9 8hv'y
Lore $ v86°'T S 6S1T $ 861C § LLO'T S 9€S°I1
ve6 vl $ 960°61 $ ITI°LT S L88'ST L69V1 $ 90171
881 8781 16591 STssl 10€71 TIo°cl
144 $ 89¢ $ 0LS $ 9¢ $ 96¢ $ 760°1
800C L00T 900¢ S00¢ ¥00¢ £00¢

Ted & [eos1]

SANNA TVINANNATAOD ‘SAINVIVE ANNA

(spuesnoy ur passardxo syunowe)

(Sununodsde Jo siseq [e1IO0E PIAFIPON)

VAAOI ‘ALID VAAOI 40 ALID

S1B0 X BOSI] XIS ISe]

Spunj [eIUAWUISA0S JOYIO [[€ [e10],

spuny syoofoid [erde)
Spunj onudAdI [eroadg
:u1 poy1odal ‘pAIdSAIUN)
1q9p WI2)-3U0][ 10J pAeudISAq
PoAIdSYY
Spun,j [BIUSUILIIAOL) 1310 [[V

punj [e1ousd [e10],

POAIOSaIUN)
PoAIOSIY
puny [eI0UdD)

Q
[«



%0°L1 %0°L1 %L9T %0°CT %891 %8°L1
T6L°E $ 9LV $  (b9sD) $  (0£9°0) $ S86°1 $  (z0Z°6) $
9€°11 $ 181°01 $ 06%°L $ 61T'8 $ 12111 $ 968y $
(87€°€0) (I1L°02) Ors12) (LETST) (€€L°91) FSSP1)
€1¥'sT TSS°1T LT91T 9LLST Y1991 TLIST

- - - - - (S1¥°9)
91 - 6C 197 61 €6

- - - 112 - -

111 0LY 601 90¥ 8¢ -

0S1°6 $ 0.8°8 $ S9T'L $ 020°L $ SL8Tl  $ 00901 $
(0L5°L) $  (S0s°S) $  (¥S0'6) $  (ev8°0D) §  (9€I'6) $  (B60FD $
0S8°sL  § 8T6'TL  $ 01zcL  $ €0r'eL.  $ TIL99  § Lb¥'L9  $
T18°T1 000°€T €ST°GT 6€6°€T $90°91 $60°0C
965°¢ Yor°e 8St'¢ 9L9°¢ 9¢€°¢ £89°¢
€TE'L 00L°9 6609 6v<6 TLIS Ly
LOT'L Y61°L 0159 7879 080°9 L88°S
LEY'Y Shi'e 869 SLE9 98%°¢ SILE
€0L°01 192°01 TeIol €81°6 T6€°6 190°8
801°C1 454! 1S€°01 869°6 961°6 6v1°8
SOL8T  § TI9T§ 618ST  § 109%1  § STOYT  $ SITCT §
08789  § €THL9  $ 961'c9  § vSTT9  § 9L5°LS  § 6hE'es  §
LL6'E 868°¢ 9LTY 121y LLEY 866°T
90T°¢ 8LEE €0T°C PSEl 200°1 L66
8TTT €THC LTTT 10€°€ orT'e YLy
YL TT SSHEl 09T°t1 9pS*ST 850°CT €61°CI
0LTT YOr°1 6LT°1 SSTI 19€°T 196
Sesvy $ S06’ck  $ 1106 $ LL99E  $ 8es’se § 996°1¢  §
800 L00T 900T S00T ¥00T €002

T80 X [BOSI]

(spuesnoyp u1 passardxa sjyunoure)

(Sununodoe Jo sIseq [eNIOOR PIJIPOU)
SIEQ X [eOSI XIS Jse]

SANNA TVINANNATAOD ‘SHONVIVE ANNA NI SHONVHD

VAOI ‘ALID VAOI 40 ALID

sormipuadxa Jeydeouou
Jo 98ejudo1ad e se 901A19S 1q2(Q

sodue[eq puny ur oSueyd JON

(sosn) s901n0S FuroueUL) I9YJO [BI0O],
N0 SIQJSURIL
Ul SIQJSUBI],
Spuoq papunjai jo justied
SpuOq JO 20ULNSsI U0 (JUNOISIP) WNIWIJ
o1qeAed 9j0u Jo douenss|
sjasse [ended Jo oes
199p ULIR)-3UO] JO 2oUBNSS]
:(sasn) sa01nos Juroueuly YO
sarmipuadxa (19pun)
IOAO SINUAARI JO (AOUDIOIJIP) $S90XY
sarmpuadxa [ej0],
syoofoad [ende)
1sa101u]
Tediourig
901AI3S 199
JUSWILLIOAOST [BIOUDL)
JUSWdO[IAIP JIUIOU0IS PUE AJUNUIIO))
UOBAINAI PUL IMND)
SsyIoMm d1qng
Kyoyes oriqng
AN
sanjipuadxyg

S9suadXa SAMIAIIOR [BJUSWUIIA0S [BIO ],

SNOQUE[[IISIIA

Kadoad pue Asuow Jo 9s)

SOOIAIOS 10} So3Iey)

[BIUSWIUIOA0SIU]

syuIad pue sasueoI|

sjuowssasse pue saxe} Ajadoig
SoNUIAY

99



Fiscal
Year

1999
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005

2006

2007

2008

CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

GENERAL GOVERNMENT TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Property Tax
$ 22,153
24,271
27,071
28,623
31,966
34,958
36,076

38,336

42,221

44,101

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Modified accrual basis of accounting)

Road Use Tax

100

4,575

4,928

4,852

5,077

5,103

5,311

5,269

5,303

5,305

5,432

Hotel/Motel Tax

570
554
497
646
559
580
611

674

683

734

Total

27,298
29,753
32,420
34,346
37,628
40,849
41,956

44,313

48,209

50,267



CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE OF PROPERTY

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Fiscal Taxable Property Total Taxable Total
Year Ended Assessed Value/ Exempt Assessed Direct
June 30 Estimated Actual Value' Property Value’ Value Tax Rate
1999 $ 2,597,827 $ 128,115 $ 2,469,712 13.133
2000 2,699,944 136,493 2,563,451 13.851
2001 2,920,580 137,713 2,782,867 14.757
2002 2,975,254 152,991 2,822,263 14.850
2003 3,214,973 155,407 3,059,566 16.813
2004 3,322,001 176,188 3,145,813 17.596
2005 3,834,435 181,186 3,653,249 17.314
2006 3,953,781 183,799 3,769,982 17.729
2007 4,280,834 212,203 4,068,631 17.302
2008 4,386,219 215,955 4,170,264 17.297
Sources:

!Johnson County Abstract Assessment

2City of Jowa City Assessor's Office - Annual Report

Notes:
Property is reassessed in the odd numbered years to make adjustments to all property values, according to current market
values.

As per the Code of lowa, all real and tangible personal property subject to taxation shall be valued at its actual value and,
except as otherwise provided, shall be reassessed at 100% of its actual value, and the value so assessed shall be taken and
considered as the assessed value and taxable value of the property upon which the levy shall be made.

Taxable property includes real property, buildings and structures, industrial plant and fixtures, commercial equipment
assessed as real property, agriculture, residentail on agriculture and utilities distribution property.

Exempt property includes all property that is owned by religious and educational institutions, charitable and benevolent
societies, low-rent housing and associations for war veterans. Each must apply for property tax exempt status with the City
Assessor, who determines if the property qualifies under state guidelines. Exempt property is assessed each year like other
taxable property. Property owned by governmental entities is not taxable and is not included in “Exempt Property".
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
PROPERTY TAX BUDGETS AND COLLECTIONS

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Cash basis of accounting)

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Percent of Total as
Collection Total Tax Current Tax Levy Delinquent Tax Total Tax a Percent of

Year Levied Collections Collected Collections Collections Levy
1999 $ 21,735  § 21,842 100.5 $ 22 8 21,864 100.6 %
2000 23,945 23,989 100.2 5 23,994 100.2
2001 26,089 25,684 98.4 31 25,715 98.6
2002 27,920 28,423 101.8 5 28,428 101.8
2003 31,975 31,863 99.6 16 31,879 99.7
2004 34,073 34,009 99.8 23 34,032 99.9
2005 34,403 34,814 101.2 15 34,829 101.2
2006 36,460 36,654 100.5 44 36,698 100.7
2007 39,094 38,947 99.6 13 38,960 99.7
2008 39,973 39,768 99.5 70 39,838 99.7

Source: Certificate of City Taxes and Johnson County Treasurer's Office
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Fiscal
Year

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

Sources:

CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
SALES HISTORY AND TOTAL WATER CHARGES

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Water Sales Water System
Cubic Feet Sold Charges

N/A N/A

261,072,632 8,414,310

245,725,159 8,837,339

253,409,874 9,049,700

257,788,030 9,308,824

253,454,012 8,850,608

254,560,239 8,315,719

267,107,998 8,844,993
261,072,632 8,414,310
249,361,929 7,976,536

City of Iowa City Revenue Department

Notes:
N/A Not available
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Fiscal
Year

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

Sources:

CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
SALES HISTORY AND TOTAL SEWER CHARGES

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Sewer Sales Sewer System
Cubic Feet Sold Charges

N/A N/A

315,199,203 11,084,369

299,381,463 11,111,313

292,323,306 11,431,949

297,084,229 12,015,122

294,683,685 12,482,393

297,714,953 12,557,646

302,925,357 12,373,762
315,199,203 11,084,369
285,492,596 12,221,769

City of Iowa City Revenue Department

Notes:
N/A Not available
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR
GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES'

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Total
General
Fiscal Year Governmental Ratio of Debt
Ended Total Expenditures Service to General
June 30 Principal Interest Debt Service and Transfers Expenditures
1999 $ 2,452 $ 1,038 $ 3490 $ 45,851 .08 : 1.00
2000 2,918 1,360 4,278 52,727 .08 : 1.00
2001 3,541 1,763 5,304 53,898 .10:1.00
2002 3,599 2,136 5,735 53,462 11:1.00
2003” 4,742 3,683 8,425 82,001 .10:1.00
2004 5,172 3,336 8,508 83,445 .10:1.00
2005 9,349 3,676 13,025 88,342 .15:1.00
2006 6,099 3,458 9,557 93,360 .10:1.00
2007 6,700 3,464 10,164 93,639 .11:1.00
2008 7,323 3,556 10,879 99,178 .11:1.00

Notes:
!General Fund, Special Revenue Funds and Debt Service Fund.

2 Beginning in FY03, Capital Projects Funds are also included.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

June 30, 2008

(amounts expressed in thousands, except per capita)

Amount
Total General % Applicable Applicable
Long-Term to the to the
Name of Bonded Debt City of City of
Governmental Unit Outstanding Iowa City Iowa City Per Capita
City of Iowa City $ 87,090 100.00% $ 87,000 $ 1,299
Iowa City Community

School District 29,205 60.05% 17,537 262
Total $ 116,295 $ 104,627 $ 1,561
Per capita assessed value $ 65,405

Source: Johnson County Auditor's Office

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the city.
This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the
residents and businesses of Iowa City. This process recognizes that, when considering the city's ability to issue
and repay long-term debt, the entire burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account.
However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of
each overlapping government.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Fiscal
Year Net Revenue Annual Debt Servicez
Ended Available for Ratio of
June 30 Revenue ﬂpenisl Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
Parking Revenue’
1999 $ 3,653 $ 1,713 $ 1,940 $ 415 $ 168 $§ 583 3.33
2000 3,716 1,861 1,855 455 139 594 3.12
2001 4,309 2,176 2,133 485 836 1,321 1.61
2002 4,272 1,960 2,312 510 746 1,256 1.84
2003 4,198 1,953 2,245 375 715 1,090 2.06
2004 4,164 2,319 1,845 395 687 1,082 1.71
2005 4,360 2,377 1,983 305 663 968 2.05
2006 4,161 2,380 1,781 320 645 965 1.85
2007 5,035 2,973 2,062 335 626 961 2.15
2008 4,995 2,454 2,541 355 606 961 2.64
Wastewater Treatment Revenue®
1999 $ 11,362 $ 2,987 % 8,375 $ 2,065 $ 3,519 § 5,584 1.50
2000 11,872 3,259 8,613 2,160 3,691 5,851 1.47
2001 12,824 3,248 9,576 2,505 3,589 6,094 1.57
2002 12,501 3,389 9,112 3,005 4236 7,241 1.26
2003 13,000 4,463 8,537 3,060 4,385 7,445 1.15
2004 12,947 4,523 8,424 3,280 3,672 6,952 1.21
2005 12,600 4,432 8,168 3,630 3,537 7,167 1.14
2006 12,798 4,260 8,538 3,815 3,390 7,205 1.19
2007 13,708 4236 9,472 3,905 3,234 7,139 1.33
2008 13,332 4,581 8,751 4,105 3,071 7,176 1.22
Water Revenue’
1999 $ 8,571 $ 3,295 $ 5276 $ -3 -3 - 0.00
2000 9,626 3,384 6,242 - 299 299 20.88
2001 10,629 3,410 7,219 140 445 585 12.34
2002 10,179 3,428 6,751 705 1,175 1,880 3.59
2003 10,241 4,361 5,880 500 1,088 1,588 3.70
2004 10,627 4,360 6,267 925 1,427 2,352 2.66
2005 9,287 4,783 4,504 845 1,340 2,185 2.06
2006 9,918 5,722 4,196 880 1,305 2,185 1.92
2007 9,220 5,356 3,864 915 1,268 2,183 1.77
2008 9,258 5,348 3,910 955 1,229 2,184 1.79
Note:

"Excludes depreciation and interest.

*Includes principal and interest of revenue bonds only.

3Parking Revenue bonds ratio of "Net Revenue Available for Debt Service" to "Total Annual Debt Service"
is required to be at least 1.25.

*Wastewater Treatment Revenue bonds ratio of "Net Revenue Available for Debt Service" to "Total
Annual Debt Service" is required to be at least 1.10.

SWater Revenue bonds ratio of "Net Revenue Available for Debt Service" to "Total Annual Debt Service"
is required to be at least 1.10.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
REVENUE DEBT ANNUAL MATURITY BY FUNDING SOURCE

Parking
Outstanding
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2008 $ 355,000 $ 605,594 $ 960,594
2009 370,000 584,298 954,298
2010 390,000 561,973 951,973
2011 410,000 538,473 948,473
2012 430,000 513,798 943,798
2013 455,000 487,801 942,801
2014 480,000 460,335 940,335
2015 505,000 431,401 936,401
2016 535,000 400,851 935,851
2017 565,000 368,468 933,468
2018 600,000 334,100 934,100
2019 630,000 297,815 927,815
2020 670,000 259,465 929,465
2021 710,000 218,400 928,400
2022 750,000 174,600 924,600
2023 795,000 128,250 923,250
2024 845,000 79,050 924,050
2025 895,000 26,850 921,850
Total $ 10,390,000 $ 6,471,522 $ 16,861,522
Sewer
Outstanding
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2008 $ 4,105,000 $ 3,071,052 $ 7,176,052
2009 4,260,000 2,896,949 7,156,949
2010 4,445,000 2,708,083 7,153,083
2011 4,700,000 2,505,109 7,205,109
2012 4,940,000 2,289,772 7,229,772
2013 4,995,000 2,064,487 7,059,487
2014 3,200,000 1,868,768 5,068,768
2015 3,375,000 1,701,744 5,076,744
2016 3,570,000 1,524,890 5,094,890
2017 3,750,000 1,337,734 5,087,734
2018 3,960,000 1,138,893 5,098,893
2019 4,155,000 927,558 5,082,558
2020 4,405,000 703,288 5,108,288
2021 4,105,000 477,400 4,582,400
2022 2,725,000 290,544 3,015,544
2023 1,490,000 172,975 1,662,975
2024 755,000 111,238 866,238
2025 800,000 68,475 868,475
2026 845,000 23,238 868,238
Total $ 64,580,000 $ 25,882,197 $ 90,462,197

(continued)
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

REVENUE DEBT ANNUAL MATURITY BY FUNDING SOURCE (continued)

Water
Outstanding
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2008 $ 955,000 $ 1,229,246 $ 2,184,246
2009 995,000 1,187,519 2,182,519
2010 1,040,000 1,143,160 2,183,160
2011 1,085,000 1,096,358 2,181,358
2012 1,135,000 1,047,483 2,182,483
2013 1,190,000 996,007 2,186,007
2014 1,245,000 941,359 2,186,359
2015 1,305,000 883,155 2,188,155
2016 1,365,000 821,045 2,186,045
2017 1,430,000 754,623 2,184,623
2018 1,505,000 683,534 2,188,534
2019 1,580,000 607,820 2,187,820
2020 1,660,000 527,456 2,187,456
2021 1,745,000 442271 2,187,271
2022 1,835,000 351,624 2,186,624
2023 1,930,000 255,207 2,185,207
2024 1,400,000 168,094 1,568,094
2025 1,480,000 90,875 1,570,875
2026 910,000 25,594 935,594

Total $ 25,790,000 $ 13,252,430 S 39,042,430
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Full-Time Equivalent Employees as of June 30

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
Public Safety
Police 90.75 96.25 96.25 97.25 97.25 97.25
Fire 52 52 52 58 58 58
Animal Shelter 5.44 5.5 5.5 5.5 6 6
Inspection Services 14.13 14.13 14.13 14.13 14.13 14.13
Public Works
Public Works Admin 2 2 3 2 2 2
Engineering 11 10.6 11.6 13.6 13.6 13.6
Traffic Engineering 3.75 4.15 4.15 4.15 5.65 5.65
Streets 23 235 235 235 22 22
Culture and Recreation
Parks and Rec Admin 2 2 2 2 2 2
Recreation 13.17 14.67 15.17 15.17 15.17 15.17
Parks 12 13 13 13 13 13
Forestry 3 3 3 3 3 3
Cemetery 3 3 3 3 3 3
CBD Maintenance 3 3 3 3 3 3
Library 38 40.25 40.25 41.25 41.25 43.25
Senior Center 5.5 6 6 6 5.81 5.81
Community and Economic Developmer 8.45 8.55 8.55 9.05 8.35 9.45
General Government
City Council 7 7 7 7 7 7
City Manager 3 3 3 3 3 3
City Clerk 4.5 5 4.5 4.5 4 4
City Attorney 6 6 6 6.6 6.6 6.6
Personnel 4 4 4 4 4 4
Finance 28.62 27.71 27.36 28.61 28.61 28.61
Government Buildings 4.08 4.08 4.97 4.96 4.96 4.96
Energy Conservation 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5
Human Rights 2 2 2 2 2.5 2.5
Transit 48.75 48.25 48.25 48.5 48.5 48.5
Special Revenue
Employee Benefits 0.38 0.45 0.45 0.4 0.34 0.34
CIP / Roads - 7 6 7 7 7
Community Development 4.75 4.75 4.75 4.75 5.45 5.35
JCCOG 5.8 6.1 6.1 6.1 6.1 6.1
Library Development 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5
Internal Service Funds
Information Technology 55 7.95 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5
Equipment 9.5 9.5 9.5 10.25 11.25 11.26
Central Services 1.7 2.1 2.25 0.75 0.75 0.75
Risk Management 1.59 1.56 1.46 1.26 1.33 1.33
Business-Type Activities
Parking 30.5 30.5 37 37 315 315
Wastewater Treatment 30.3 25.3 25.3 26.3 26.3 27.3
Water 25.95 26.2 26.2 28.2 30.7 31.7
Sanitation 31 31.85 32.35 32.35 32.35 32.35
Airport 1.5 1.75 2 2 2 2
Cable television 4.75 5.25 5.25 5.25 6.19 6.19
Stormwater - - - - - -
Housing Authority 11.75 10.75 12.5 12.5 12.5 12.5
Total 565.11 581.65 591.79 606.38 605.64 610.65

Source: City's Financial Plans.
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Full-Time Equivalent Employees as of June 30

2005 2006 2007 2008
94.25 94.25 96.25 96.25
56 57 57 57
6 6 6 6
13.88 14.88 14.88 15.38
2 2 2 2
11.6 11.6 11.6 11.35
5.65 4.15 4.15 4.15
22 23.5 235 235
2 2 2 2
15.17 15.17 15.42 15.42
12 13 13 13
3 3 3 3
3 3 3 3
3 3 3 3
42.63 42.63 42.89 43.14
631 631 631 631
8.45 8.45 8.45 8.95
7 7 7 7
3 3 3 3
4 4 4 4
6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6
4 4 4 4
26.61 26.75 26.75 26.5
4.96 4.96 4.96 4.96
0.5 0.5 0.5 0.25
25 25 25 25
50.5 50.5 50.5 54.75
0.34 0.39 0.39 0.29
3 2 2 1
435 435 435 3.98
6.1 6.6 6.6 6.6
0.8 1 1 1
8 11.75 12 12.3
11.25 11.26 11.26 11.26
0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75
1.32 1.38 1.38 1.73
3275 3275 3275 3275
273 255 255 255
317 325 32 3275
34.35 33.85 33.85 34.85
2 1.6 1.6 1.6
6.19 6.19 6.19 6.19
- 0.5 1 2
12.75 13.25 13.25 13.25
599.56 605.37 608.13 614.81

123



'SIUE|J 1OJEMAISEA (INOS PUE YLION Y} (10q UO paseq are soquint 80 A4 ANV LOAA,
"€0Ad 01 Iotid sT1BAA 10J S[qE[TEAE 10U SUONEIOIA FuUlyIed JO IoQUING oY) UO UOHEULIOFU] ¢

“S[[e9 10§ 80/61/1 1 pue uonoodsur 10§ £0/¢g/1 1 YSno1y) pojiduwod oxe somsLy OO PUE Ieak IEPUOTED B UO Poseq ole SIDQUINN

"LO/T/11 ySnoxy) payrduwiod are sarmsiy 00T Pue 1LaA Iepus[ed & U0 Paseq dIe SIOqUINN |

09L°TET SIesel IZ49A0! 96€Cll SS1°801 $86°€01 YOV €01 80C°L6 YOL'YS LOL18
PE88 TTL'S £9v°8 L99°8 91L‘8 790°8 8€1°8 S06°L 698°L €L8'L
YLS 1 96Sy1 1LEYT 8SIyl €86°¢1 908°¢1 899°¢1 gssel LSYE1 YLT'EL
¥86°CC 1LS'YT ¥80'7T y1S°€T TH0'€T 68Y°CT S8L1T 190°1C $€9°0T S61°0C
6¢l LEl vel 6Cl1 Scl LTI ¥l 14! el 611
€l €l €l €l €l Cl 4! 4! I It
8LET 8hv'l 80v°1 001 LLET 85€°1 el STel 68T°1 SLT1
YSYIT €L6°CC 6TSTT TL61T LTSIT 766°0C 80€°0C 009°61 11Z°%61 06L°81
000°00L°91 000°00L91 000°00L°91 000°00L91 000°00L°91 000°00L91 000°00S°01 000°00S°01 000°00S°01 000°00S°01
TTISLY'S 8€T9ISS 009°089°S 00S°‘8t¥°S 000°THL’S 0007€0°9 0000009 000°L1L*S 000°068°S 000°1Z1°9
606°CC 18¥°CC 90°CT Tssiie S91°1C 80L°0T 901°0T 08¥°61 9€1°61 06L°81
000°000°T¥  000°000°0%  000°000°0%  000°000°0% 000°000°0%  000°000°0% 000°000°0% 000°000°S€ 000°000°SE  000°000°S€
000°018°C1 000°0€¥°6 000°08S‘Y 000°0L8‘Y 000°096'Y 000°0€S‘y 000°011°S 000°01L°S 000°00S ‘Y 000°0¥€°S
€LY'LY1 L81°991 8€E6€E1 £€0°SH1 8€ESST ¥L9°981 V/IN V/N V/IN V/N
169°1 €LT 1 61T°1 €80°1 SL6 9¢6 686 6L0°1 976 180°1
SI8°c T0L'E 6L9°c 96S°€ 81¢‘c 9bse 61s‘c 0LS‘E 89L°C TLLE
LSS 160°9 LOT'8 8TY'L SIS°8 8TY'L 6€9°L L¥0°8 190°8 gse’s
8€8°S 816°S 1989 8TS‘L 88T'L 9108 676°8 6€€°L Se8'L Se8'L
8007 L00T 9007 S00¢ $00T £00T 2007 1007 000¢ 6661

Ie9 X [BOSI]

SIBd X TSI U9 1SB

VAOI ‘ALID VMOI 40 ALID

NOILLONOA A9 SHOLVIIANI ONILVIAdO

:1S3)ON
"SUOISIAIP A)10 SNOLIEA :§32.IN0S

ogeuuo],
[Typue]

SuoJ,
SISW0)SN)) JO JOQUINN]
uonejueg

s1owoIsny) [e10 L,
L)
[ernsnpuy
[eroIoUIUIo))
[BHUSPISTY
UOIBOIJISSE[) AQ SIOWO0ISN)) WIAISAS I9IB A\

suoqes ur juerd jo Ayoedes Ajrep wnwixey
suo[[e3 ur uondwnsuoo s3eroae A[req
I0Je A

SIOWIOISNO WISYSAS JOMIS JO JOqUINN
suojre3 ur jueld Jo Ayroedes A[rep wnwirxepy
.,maozmw ur juounjear a3e1dAe AJreq

JUSWIIBAI], IOIBMISB A

(SUOTIE[OTA Sunjied

Sunjreq

pajonpuod suonoadsuy
PoIOMSUE S[[D JO JoquInN

QIT
EHE

SUOTJE[OIA JLJel]
s)so1Ie [eo1SAyJ
22lod

Kyeges orqng

124



125



(ponunuoo)

94
cl
Ie
€
4

€09°1
19

(V1%

LSEC
692

on N

-2}
(=4
>
(o]

94
cl
6¢C

009°1
19

(V1%

LSEE
897

~
!
S|
(o]

4
cl
6¢C

00%°1
19

(V1%

LSEC
792

\&
(4
(=
(o]

94
cl
6¢C

00¥°1
19

(V1%

LSEC
792

w)
(4
(=
(o]

4 94

cl Cl

6¢C 6¢C

€ €

[4 [4

00%°1 TTel

19 0¢

(V1% (V1%

I I

I I

Tse'e 616C

65T 96T

8 8

€ €

L1 L1

I I
00T £007

94
Cl
6¢C

TTel
0¢

(V1%

0T6°C
15T

200

[4

4
Cl
6¢C

TTel
0¢

(V1%

£98°C
6vC

(o]

4
Cl
6¢C

TTel
0¢

LE

LILT
9T

(=4
(4
(=
(o]

S¢
Cl
6¢C

800°1
9y

LE

89T
vre

=)
N
-

Ied X Teost

NOILONNA A4 SLASSV TVLIdVD

VAOI ‘ALID VAAOI A0 ALID

SIBQ & [BOSI] U], Ise]

Sp[ol 199908
S}INOD STUUQ ],
SpuoweIp [[eg
sjood Surwimg
I0JUQD UOTBAIINY

uoneaIoNy

ogearoy
syred

o3earoy
A1910W10))

Areiqr
UoneaIddy pue aimny)

Sy 10018
SIMIA
NERNIN
S3IOM OlIqnd

smeredde a11,g
suonels
Rt

sjun joneq
suonels
ao1[0g
Kioges orqng

126



S6¢

SLST
¥8¢

vO1°ST

811

88¢C

G80°c

00T

695°C
€8¢

£06'7C

LTT

98¢

001°¢

00T

YLY'T
LLT

(0874

(8!

08¢

LETE

00T

8T
CLT

865°€T

SOT

LLT

LEST

00T

0vET
69¢

LLOET
01

YLT

LEST

00T

€vTT
c9¢

v15°Te

86

69¢

LEST

00T

81T
09¢

S8LlT

¥6

99¢

LEST

00¢

601°C
(44

190°1¢C

16

€9¢

LEST

SIBQ & [BOSI] U], Ise]

00T

620°C
1444

S€9°0T

V/IN

09¢

SL6T

(ponunuod) NOLLONNA A9 SLASSY TVLIdVD

VAOI ‘ALID VAAOI A0 ALID

"s1e0A Jot1d UI PadorI) J0U JOMIS WLI0JS JO SOIW JO JOqUINN

00C

Se6°l
6¢€C

S61°0T

V/IN

0ve

SL6T

19JON
"SUOISIAIP £J10 SNOLIEA :§32.IN0S

ogearoy

S[Iypue]
uoneues

SJUBIPAY 11J PAUMO KJ10 JO JOqUUNN
surew Iayem Jo S9[IA
Iote A\

SI0309UU0D 9ITAISS JO JOqUINN
syuerd Jusunean Jo JequinN
JOMIS WII0)S JO SATIA]
Jomas ATejrues Jo So[IA
JUQUIIEAI], JOJEMAISE A\

sqoedg
santioe]
Sunyreq

127



128



N
EideBailly.
\——

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITII

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Iowa City, Iowa

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Towa City, Iowa, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements and have issued our
report thereon dated December 5, 2008. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal
control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that
adversely affects the City’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that
a misstatement of the City’s financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or
detected by the City’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or
detected by the City’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
wstances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the City’s operations for the year ended June 30,
2008, are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures performed during our audit of the
financial statements of the City of Iowa City, Iowa, and are reported in Part III of the accompanying Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs. Since our audit was based on tests and samples, not all transactions that
might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily audited. The comments involving statutory and
other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those statutes.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated December 5,
2008.

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials, employees,
and citizens of the City of Iowa City, Iowa, and other parties to whom the City of Iowa City, Iowa, may report,
including federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities. This report is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by personnel of the City of
Iowa City, Iowa, during the course of our audit. Should you have any questions concerning any of the above
matters, we shall be pleased to discuss them with you at your convenience.

@/M Le?P

Dubuque, Iowa .
December 5, 2008
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CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Iowa City, lowa

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Iowa City, Iowa, with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that
are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2008. The City’s major federal
programs are identified in the summary of the independent auditor’s results section of the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the City’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of .
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the City’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City of Iowa City, Iowa, complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2008. However, the
results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of non-compliance with those requirements, which is
required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which is described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item II-A-08.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City of Iowa City, Iowa, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control
over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.
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A control deficiency in the City’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions,
to prevent or detect non-compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely
affects the City’s ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelihood non-
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than inconsequential will
not be prevented or detected by the City’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that material non-compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented or detected by the City’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

The City’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs. While we have expressed our conclusion on the City’s response, we did not
audit the City’s response, and accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials, employees,
and citizens of the City of Iowa City, Iowa, and other parties to whom the City of Towa City, Iowa, may report,
including federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities. This report is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

@/M Le7P

Dubugque, Iowa
December 5, 2008
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CITY OF IOWA CITY,IOWA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
Agency or
Pass-through Program
Grantor/Program CFDA Number Number _Expenditures
Direct:
Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Community Development Block Grants/
Entitlement Grants 14.218 B-05-MC-19-0009 §$ 35,255
Community Development Block Grants/
Entitlement Grants 14.218 B-06-MC-19-0009 654,983
Community Development Block Grants/ - ‘
Entitlement Grants 14.218 B-07-MC-19-0009 264,932
955,170
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 M-98-MC-19-0205 66
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 M-04-MC-19-0205 94,616
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 M-05-MC-19-0205 359,351
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 M-06-MC-19-0205 256,658
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 M-07-MC-19-0205 177.900
888,591
Public and Indian Housing 14.850 1A-022-00000108D 103,490
Public and Indian Housing 14.850 1A-022-003-07D 109,053
212,543
Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services 14.870 TIA022REF010A003 10,610
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 KC9033 5,955,658
Public Housing Capital Fund 14.872 1A05P02250107 112,719
Department of Justice:
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 BUBX07037623 540
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance
Grant Program 16.738 2006-DJ-BX-0484 7,972
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance '
Grant Program 16.738 2007-DJ-BX-0415 60,088
68,060
Department of Transportation:
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-19-0047-10 10,091
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-19-0047-13 323,825
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-19-0047-14 1,033,871
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-19-0047-15 90,657
1,458,444
(continued)
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (continued)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
Agency or
Pass-through Program
Grantor/Program CFDA Number Number Expenditures
Direct: (continued)
Department of 'I'ransportation: (continued)
Federal Transit — Formula Grants 20.507 IA-90-X334 $ 877,791
Federal Transit — Formula Grants 20.507 IA-90-X338 42,285
920,076
Department of Homeland Security:
DVAP Rental Assistance and
Administrative Expenditures 97.NA [IA022KC9033 12,801
Total direct 10,595,212
Indirect:
Department of Justice:
Iowa Department of Justice:
Violence Against Women Formula Grants 16.588 VW-08-34 45,185
Govemor’s Office of Drug Control Policy:
Public Safety Partnership and Community
Policing Grants 16.710 07JAG/C06-A33 14,624
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance
Grant Program 16.738 07JAG/C06-A33 39,808
Department of Transportation:
Iowa Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 HDP-3715(634)- -71-52 210,732
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 HDP-3715(628)- -71-52 628,103
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 08MPO-JCCOG 122,533
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 STP-E-3715(635)- -8V-52 38,986
: 1,000,354
Federal Transit — Capital Investment Grants 20.500 1A-04-01 13—371 -07 72,000

Federal Transit — Metropolitan Planning Grants ~ 20.505

Formula Grants for Other Than Urbanized Areas 20.509

Capital Assistance Program for Elderly Persons

and Persons with Disabilities
Job Access — Reverse Commute

New Freedom Program
New Freedom Program

NA = Not Applicable

20.513

20.516

20.521
20.521
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08MPO-JCCOG

IA-18-702X-371-07

1A-16-X001-371-08
1A-37-X012-371-07

1A-57-X001-371-06
IA-57-X001-371-07

30,996

950

73.078

13.449

35,054
56,392
91,446
(continued)




CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (continued)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
Agency or
, Pass-through Program
Grantor/Program CFDA Number Number _Expenditures
Indirect: (continued)
Department ot 'I'ransportation: (continued)
Iowa Department of Public Safety:
Governor’s Traffic Safety Bureau:
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 PAP 07-02, Task 13§ 5,014
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 PAP 08-02, Task 13 12,002
17,016
Safety Incentives to Prevent Operation of
Motor Vehicles by Intoxicated Persons 20.605 PAP 07-163, Task 37 12,539
Department of Homeland Security:
Iowa Department of Homeland Security:
Disaster Grants — Public Assistance
(Presidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 FEMA-1737DR-IA 83,189
Disaster Grants — Public Assistance
(Presidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 FEMA-1763DR-IA 1,048,472

Total indirect

Total

See notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditurées of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of the City
of Iowa City, Iowa, and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information on this schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

NOTE 2. SUBRECIPIENTS

Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule, the City of Iowa City, Iowa, provided federal awards to
subrecipients as follows:

Federal Amount Provided
Program Title CFDA Number to Subrecipients
Community Development Block Grants/ -

Entitlement Grants 14.218 $ 624,053
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 754,253
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance

Grant Program 16.738 68,114
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Part I: Summary of the Independent Auditor’s Results:

(@)
(b)
©
(d)
(©
®

®

®)
®

Unqualified opinions were issued on the financial statements.

No material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting were noted.

The audit did not disclose any non-compliance which is material to the financial statements.

No material weaknesses in internal control over the major programs were noted.

An unqualified opinion was issued on compliance with requirements applicable to the major programs.

The audit disclosed an audit finding which is required to be reported in accordance with Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Section .510(a).

The major programs were:

e CFDA 14.871 — Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers

¢ CFDA 97.036 — Disaster Grants — Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters)
The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs was $394,150.

The City of Iowa City, Iowa, qualified as a low-risk auditee.

Part IT: Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards:

INSTANCE OF NON-COMPLIANCE:

CFDA Number 14.871: Section 8 Housing Choice Vounchers
Agency Number: KC9033
Department of Housing and Urban Development

II-A-08 Reasonable Rent — Non-compliance

Criteria — As noted in the Compliance Supplement, 24 CFR sections 982.4, 982.54(2)(15),
982.158(£)(7) and 982.507 require that the Housing Authority determine that rent to an owner is
reasonable at the time of initial leasing, as well as during the term of the contract before any increase
in rent to the owner. The Housing Authority must maintain records to document the basis for the

determination that the rent to the owner is a reasonable rent.

Condition — In reviewing tenant files, we noted two instances where the required documentation
regarding reasonable rent was not present in the tenant file. One instance was at the initiation of a
new lease, and the other was when a rent increase to the owner was granted.

Cause — Although Housing Authority personnel appear to be aware of the requirement to document
rent reasonableness, it appears the cause of the non-compliance stems from a lack of final review of

the specific tenant files for completeness.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Part 1I: Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards: (continued)

Effect — By not documenting rent reasonableness, it is possible that an owner could be paid rent that,
is too high for the circumstances of the unit.

Recommendation — lhe Housing Authority should review their procedures used to verity the
completeness of files for all required documentation to ensure that all documentation is present, in
particular the requirement to document reasonable rent.

Response — The Housing Authority reviewed with staff the circumstances in which a rent
reasonableness survey must be completed. The importance of documenting and placing this
information in the file was also reviewed. Going forward the Section 8 Coordinator will take

particular note of this finding when reviewing files to ensure compliance.
Conclusion — Response accepted.
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES:

No material weaknesses in internal control over the major programs were noted.

Part III: Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting:
II-A-08 Certified Budget — Disbursements at June 30, 2008, did not exceed the amount budgeted.

MI-B-08 Questionable Expenditures — We noted no expenditures that we believe may fail to meet the
requirements of public purpose as defined in an Attorney General’s opinion dated April 25, 1979.

III-C-08 Travel Expense—~ No expenditures of City money for travel expenses of spouses of City officials or
employees were noted.

II-D-08 Business Transactions — No business transactions between the City and City officials or employees
were noted. .

III-E-08 Bond Coverage — Surety bond coverage of City officials and employees is in accordance with
statutory provisions. The amount of coverage should be reviewed annually to insure the coverage is

adequate for current operations.

III-F-08 Council Minutes — No transactions were found that we believe should have been approved in the
Council minutes but were not.

IOI-G-08 Deposits and Investments — No instances of non-compliancev with the deposit and investment
provisions of Chapters 12B and 12C of the Code of Towa and the City’s investment policy were

noted.

III-H-08 Revenue Bonds — We noted no instances of non-compliance with the provisions of the City’s
revenue bond resolutions.
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To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Iowa City, lowa

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Iowa City, Iowa, for the year ended June 30,
2008, and have issued our report thereon dated December 5, 2008. Professional standards require that we provide
you with the following information related to our audit.

Our Responsibilities under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and OMB
Circular A-133

As stated in our engagement letter dated May 14, 2008, our responsibility, as described by professional standards,
is to express opinions about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your oversight are
fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our
audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting in order to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements and not
to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. We also considered internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit. Also in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, we examined, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s
compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the “U.S. Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement” applicable to each of its major federal programs for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the City’s compliance with those requirements. While our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion, it does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance with those requirements.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you in our
engagement letter dated May 14, 2008, and in our meeting about planning matters on August 26, 2008.

PEOPLE. PRINCIPLES. POSSIBILITIES.

www.eidebailly.com
3999 Pennsylvania Ave., Ste. 100 B Dubuque, lowa 52002-2273 B Phone 563.556.1790 I Fax 563.557.7842 | EOE




To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council

City of Iowa City, Iowa

Page 2

Significant Audit Findings
Quélitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the City of Iowa City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new
accounting policies were adopted, and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year ended
June 30, 2008. We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. There are no significant transactions that have been recognized in the
financial statements in a different period than when the transaction occurred.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most
sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

Management’s estimate of the depreciable lives is based on past history of life cycles of capital assets. We
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the depreciable lives in determining that they
are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Management’s estimate of the incurred but not reported health, workers' compensation, liability, and
long-term disability insurance liabilities are based on third-party administrator's calculations and
estimates. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the incurred but not reported
liabilities in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Management’s estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based on accounts which are past due
with no special arrangement for payment. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop
the allowance for doubtful accounts in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.
The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has
corrected all such misstatements.
Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to

the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during
the course of our audit.



To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council

City of Iowa City, Iowa

Page 3

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation
letter dated December 5, 2008.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an
accounting principle to the City's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may
be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with
other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City’s auditors. However, these discussions
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our
retention.

Other Comments

We have included additional comments regarding the financial statements and operations. These comments are
not a result of in-depth study of any specific areas, but are based on observations made during the course of our
audit.

This information is intended solely for the use of the officials, employees, and citizens of the City of Iowa City,
Iowa, and other parties to whom the City of lowa City may report, including federal awarding agencies and pass-
through entities. This report is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

As always, we will be happy to discuss these or any other topics at your convenience. We would like to take this
opportunity to express our appreciation to you and your staff for the fine cooperation that we received during the
course of the audit. We look forward to many years of continued service to the City of Iowa City, lowa.

@/fw% LA

Dubuque, Iowa
December 5, 2008



CITY OF IOWA CITY

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
OTHER COMMENTS

Landfill Receivables

One waste hauler to the City-owned landfill has accumulated a substantial balance for dumping fees. While this
had been an issue in past years, the balance had been paid down to a reasonable amount at certain points in time.
As of June 30, 2008, the balance had again increased substantially. The City currently has an agreement in place
which sets forth payment requirements from the hauler in order for the hauler to be able to continue dumping at
the landfill. We recommend that this situation continue to be monitored closely, communicated regularly between
departments involved, and that the City enforce all aspects of the agreement in order to get the balance of the
receivable current.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued six statements not yet implemented by the
City of Iowa City. The statements, which might impact the City of Iowa City, are as follows:

Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions, issued June 2004, will be effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009. This statement establishes
standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of other postemployment benefit (OPEB)
expense/expenditures and related liabilities (assets), note disclosures, and, if applicable, required supplementary
information in the financial reports of state and local governmental employers.

Statement No. 47, Accounting for Termination Benefits, issued June 2005, establishes accounting standards for
termination benefits. For termination benefits provided through an existing defined benefit OPEB plan, the
provisions of this statement should be implemented simultaneously with the requirements of Statement No. 45.
For all other termination benefits, this statement was effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006.

Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations, issued November
2006, will be effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009. This statement establishes standards for
accounting and financial reporting for obligations to address the current or potential detrimental effects of existing
pollution.

Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets, issued June 2007, will be effective
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010. This statement requires that all intangible assets not specifically excluded
by its scope be classified as capital assets.

Statement No. 52, Land and Other Real Estate Held as Investments by Endowments, issued November 2007, will
be effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009. This statement establishes consistent standards for the
reporting of land and other real estate held as investments by essentially similar entities.

Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, issued June 2008, will be
effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010. This statement addresses the recognition, measurement, and
disclosure of information regarding derivative instruments entered into by state and local governments.
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To the Honorable Mayor and
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City of Iowa City, lowa

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Iowa City, Iowa, for the year ended June 30,
2008, and have issued our report thereon dated December 5, 2008. Professional standards require that we provide
you with the following information related to our audit.

Our Responsibilities under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and OMB
Circular A-133

As stated in our engagement letter dated May 14, 2008, our responsibility, as described by professional standards,
is to express opinions about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your oversight are
fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our
audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting in order to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements and not
to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. We also considered internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit. Also in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, we examined, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s
compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the “U.S. Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement” applicable to each of its major federal programs for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the City’s compliance with those requirements. While our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion, it does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance with those requirements.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you in our
engagement letter dated May 14, 2008, and in our meeting about planning matters on August 26, 2008.
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City of Iowa City, Iowa
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Significant Audit Findings
Quélitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the City of Iowa City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new
accounting policies were adopted, and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year ended
June 30, 2008. We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. There are no significant transactions that have been recognized in the
financial statements in a different period than when the transaction occurred.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most
sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

Management’s estimate of the depreciable lives is based on past history of life cycles of capital assets. We
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the depreciable lives in determining that they
are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Management’s estimate of the incurred but not reported health, workers' compensation, liability, and
long-term disability insurance liabilities are based on third-party administrator's calculations and
estimates. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the incurred but not reported
liabilities in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Management’s estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based on accounts which are past due
with no special arrangement for payment. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop
the allowance for doubtful accounts in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.
The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has
corrected all such misstatements.
Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to

the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during
the course of our audit.
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Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation
letter dated December 5, 2008.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an
accounting principle to the City's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may
be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with
other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City’s auditors. However, these discussions
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our
retention.

Other Comments

We have included additional comments regarding the financial statements and operations. These comments are
not a result of in-depth study of any specific areas, but are based on observations made during the course of our
audit.

This information is intended solely for the use of the officials, employees, and citizens of the City of Iowa City,
Iowa, and other parties to whom the City of lowa City may report, including federal awarding agencies and pass-
through entities. This report is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

As always, we will be happy to discuss these or any other topics at your convenience. We would like to take this
opportunity to express our appreciation to you and your staff for the fine cooperation that we received during the
course of the audit. We look forward to many years of continued service to the City of Iowa City, lowa.
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Dubuque, Iowa
December 5, 2008



CITY OF IOWA CITY

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
OTHER COMMENTS

Landfill Receivables

One waste hauler to the City-owned landfill has accumulated a substantial balance for dumping fees. While this
had been an issue in past years, the balance had been paid down to a reasonable amount at certain points in time.
As of June 30, 2008, the balance had again increased substantially. The City currently has an agreement in place
which sets forth payment requirements from the hauler in order for the hauler to be able to continue dumping at
the landfill. We recommend that this situation continue to be monitored closely, communicated regularly between
departments involved, and that the City enforce all aspects of the agreement in order to get the balance of the
receivable current.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued six statements not yet implemented by the
City of Iowa City. The statements, which might impact the City of Iowa City, are as follows:

Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions, issued June 2004, will be effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009. This statement establishes
standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of other postemployment benefit (OPEB)
expense/expenditures and related liabilities (assets), note disclosures, and, if applicable, required supplementary
information in the financial reports of state and local governmental employers.

Statement No. 47, Accounting for Termination Benefits, issued June 2005, establishes accounting standards for
termination benefits. For termination benefits provided through an existing defined benefit OPEB plan, the
provisions of this statement should be implemented simultaneously with the requirements of Statement No. 45.
For all other termination benefits, this statement was effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006.

Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations, issued November
2006, will be effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009. This statement establishes standards for
accounting and financial reporting for obligations to address the current or potential detrimental effects of existing
pollution.

Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets, issued June 2007, will be effective
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010. This statement requires that all intangible assets not specifically excluded
by its scope be classified as capital assets.
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